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ANNUAL REPORT 2015 - 2016
Our approach to this report
This report is produced in response to the NHS England requirements as published in the
Department of Health Manual for Accounts 2015-16. The structure closely follows that
outlined in the guidance, which has been revised this year following national feedback on
previous reports.
The new structure simplifies and slims down the report and is in three sections:
1. The Performance Report, including an overview, performance analysis and
performance measures
2. The Accountability Report, including corporate governance report, the directors’
report, annual governance statement and remuneration and staff report
3. Annual Accounts
While this is a public document, it is quite technical and more detailed than members of the
public may need when looking for information about what the CCG has done for them over
the past year, what we have achieved and what we are looking to do in the future. We will
therefore be publishing a more accessible document later in the spring.
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1. PERFORMANCE
REPORT
OVERVIEW
NHS Leeds South and East Clinical
Commissioning Group (NHS LSE CCG) is an
ambitious organisation that strives to improve
the health and wellbeing of the local people.
This report gives us an opportunity to
demonstrate the tremendous amount of work
we and our partners have undertaken from
April 2015 to March 2016 by working
together.
We know our population faces significant
morbidity and premature mortality compared
with the rest of Leeds. This is driving us to
improve the health and wellbeing of our local
population, reduce inequalities and
commission high quality, safe and sustainable
health services for all. For us it is important
that we tackle health inequalities on a
number of fronts – within our own
communities in South and East Leeds as well
as between our communities, the rest of
Leeds and the wider regional footprint. We
also recognise the variation in health in
relation to gender. This attention to detail
enables us to home in on strategies and plans
which will improve those with the poorest
health the fastest.

1.1 Investment to support
health improvement
We have made numerous investments during
2015/16 to support improvements in health,
wellbeing and quality of life, and throughout
this report we will share with you our
successes and achievements. During 2015/16,
one of the most important issues for Leeds
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was planning for, and ensuring a sustainable
health and care system for our population.
With an ageing population living with multiple
long term conditions (such as diabetes or
heart problems), we have ensured the
services we commission in hospitals and the
community are more joined up and integrated
with social care through the Better Care Fund
(BCF); we have continued to enhance the
quality of life of people living with long term
conditions through the Year of Care project in
Primary Care, ensuring people have the
knowledge, skills and confidence to manage
their own health care; we have introduced an
innovative grants scheme to support the
development of local projects led by local and
voluntary groups in reducing health
inequalities; and we have launched a Social
Prescribing scheme, whereby people can be
referred by their GP and other health and care
professionals into local voluntary and
community groups to help improve their
mental and physical health, and overall
wellbeing.

1.2 Co-commissioning
primary care
Throughout 2015/16 we have been preparing
to co-commission primary care from the 1st
April 2016, working with our member
practices, NHS England, Leeds CCGs, and
Public Health team. With this new
responsibility comes the opportunity to
design new models of care around the needs
of the whole person as well as families and
communities. We have done all of this against
a challenging financial environment for health
and social care in Leeds, but despite this have
achieved financial balance.
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1.3 Investors in Excellence
We are proud to have been certificated as an
Investor in Excellence in 2015/16. The
Investors in Excellence Standard is a
prestigious mark of excellence awarded to
those organisations that demonstrate a high
standard of all-round business
performance. The certification is a real
demonstration of the progress we are making
as a CCG, in line with our drive to work to the
highest standards to improve the health and
wellbeing of our communities. Feedback from
the assessment highlighted our staff and their
commitment to the values of the CCG as one
of the key strengths of the organisation.
We were recognised as one of the top 20
CCGs in the ‘best places to work in the NHS’
list in 2015. The list of ‘best places’ is
compiled annually by the Health Service
Journal and the Nursing Times, and is
sponsored by NHS Employers. The list is
compiled based on data from the national
NHS Staff Survey. This recognition further
demonstrates our efforts to promote high
levels of staff engagement.

1.4 The Sustainability and
Transformation Plan
As we contemplate and reflect on 2015/16,
we are also in planning mode for the
forthcoming year, developing our One-Year
Operational Plan for 2016/17, and playing a
key role in the development of a West
Yorkshire Five-Year Sustainability and
Transformation Plan (STP) 2016/17-2020/21.
The NHS has refocused its priorities for
2016/17 on the need to plan for a long term
sustainable NHS. To do this locally we must
work together and harness our communities
to close the following three gaps in;
●
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Health and wellbeing by focusing on
prevention;

●

Care and quality by implementing new
models of care
● Finance and efficiency by investing in
services wisely.
Only by working together to connect people
and organisations can we make the necessary
changes to meet these gaps evident within
South and East Leeds and city wide.
Thank you to our partner organisations in
Leeds, our patients and members of the
public who have contributed to the work that
we do, and our staff and our member
practices for your dedication in contributing
to achieving this year’s many successes. We
look forward to continuing to work with you
throughout 2016/17 in support of our
operational and strategic plans.

1.5 Purpose and activities
of the CCG
We are responsible for commissioning
(buying) local health services from the point
of establishing need, to designing and
procuring services, through to evaluating and
improving services. We put quality at the
heart of our organisation, and some of the
services we commission include:









Mental Health services
Learning Disability services
Rehabilitation services
Urgent and Emergency care
Community Health services
Continuing Health Care services for
people with complex needs
Planned hospital services
Local health and wellbeing services to
meet specific local population needs

We commission local services within our
annual budget, allocated by NHS England and
are required to invest this money with the
expectation to deliver the NHS Constitution
standards. We can also receive additional
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money as a reward for improving quality
known as ‘quality premiums’. During 2015/16,
we received our premium for improving
health outcomes in 2014/15 and we used this
money to invest in our Cancer Awareness
Programme, which was focused on improving
the uptake of bowel and prostate screening,
targeting specific population groups where
need is greatest.
Our vision is to improve the health and
wellbeing of our local population, reduce
inequalities and commission high quality, safe,
sustainable health services for all. Our TwoYear Operational Plan 2014/15-2015/16 was
refreshed in April 2015 for year-two of
operation, and sets out our vision and values,
population demographics and needs. It details
our plans for improving quality, developing
and supporting primary care, and local and
citywide commissioning, and describes our
five strategic aims, workstreams and
objectives, with detailed action plans against
them. Through engaging with our GP’s, staff,
people and partners, our Two-Year
Operational Plan captures what will be
different in the health and care system going
forward, based on sound clinical evidence, the
views of our patients and the public, and the
experiences of our clinicians who deliver
health services every day.

1.6 The key issues and risks
that could affect us in
delivering objectives
We are an ambitious CCG that strives to
improve the health and wellbeing of our
population. Our Two-Year Operational Plan
2014/15-2015/16 reflects our objectives and
level of ambition, and demonstrates our
commitment to improving health and
reducing inequalities.
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Although we are planning to meet all national
planning standards and commitments without
any exceptions, there are risks in delivery in a
number of areas.
Firstly, significant investment was made by
Leeds NHS commissioners (over £8m during
2015/16)
During winter the system experienced
unprecedented numbers of very sick patients
being admitted to hospital and fewer
patients attending for minor treatment – this
has had a negative impact on our A&E fourhour standard which was being met year to
date until the last quarter of the financial
year. Similarly there are risks associated with
the delays in discharge processes in and out of
hospital, leading to higher than usual numbers
of patients needing a hospital bed. More
information about these and related
standards can be found in section 2,
Performance Analysis.
Secondly, Ambulance handover targets will
also pose a significant risk. Currently no
Acute Trust within the Yorkshire region has
achieved this standard in 2015/16 which
allows for 95% of patient handovers to take
place within 15 minutes and a further 15
minutes to prepare the crew and vehicles
ready to respond to the next incident. This is
currently a very challenging target due to the
methods of data capture and being reliant on
having adequate capacity available in the A&E
department when there are surges of demand
as the pattern of vehicles arriving is very
unpredictable.
Thirdly, our performance against the
nationally set access and recovery targets for
psychological therapy services (known as
IAPT) is below where we expect it to be,
despite a huge amount of effort being put into
improvement plans. This is of real concern to
us because we know our population has a
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higher prevalence of mental ill health;
however we also know that the current model
of psychological therapy is not quite right to
meet the needs of our population. Local
improvement plans to enhance local services
and supplement with supportive services such
as health trainers has helped to improve
performance in recent months. We recently
invited the national support team to help us
identify new areas we could explore to
improve the service. This will be closely
monitored during 2016/17 and actions
implemented to address the necessary
changes.

Finally, throughout 2015/16 we have
identified a more general risk which has
constantly threatened to comprise our plans
– this is related to the workforce. Given
competing pressures from other job and
career markets, and rising demand for
services, our providers have in some cases
struggled to recruit sufficient numbers of staff
to deliver services – particularly in those cases
where we have wanted to enhance existing
services (such as psychological therapy) and
do things differently (such as integrated
teams designed around patients and carers).

Dr Andrew Harris
Clinical Chief Officer

Philip Lewer
Lay Chair
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This has subsequently affected service
delivery; however we have agreed realistic
and deliverable plans for 2016/17, ensuring
that the necessary capacity to be able to
deliver the care required is in-line with
population need, key national requirements,
and performance Standards.

2. PERFORMANCE
ANALYSIS
2.1 Our most important
performance measures
During 2015/16 we have made considerable
progress against a range of local, citywide and
national targets which have been set to
improve the health of people living in the
South and East Leeds CCG area. This requires
good access to a full range of services
including general practice, acute, community
and mental health services, in a way which is
timely, convenient and specifically tailored to
different population groups.
Although we had planned to meet all national
planning standards and commitments in
2015/16, our commissioned services are
expected to meet 17 of the 20 NHS
Constitutional Standards based on
performance year-to-date. In most cases,
services have performed just above or just
below the Standards; however across the city
in 2015/16, we have seen an increase in
demand for NHS services including urgent and
emergency care. With this in mind, the three
Standards we are not expecting to meet in
2015/16 are:
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95% of patients seen and treated
within 4 hours of arriving at A&E;
95% of patients are handed over
from ambulance to A&E within 15
minutes; and
95% of ambulance crews should be
ready to accept new calls within a
further 15 minutes.

●

Emergency Care Standard and Delayed
Transfers of Care
Performance against the number of patients
seen, treated and discharged within four
hours of arrival at A&E steadily declined
throughout 2015/16, and Leeds Teaching
Hospital Trust have not achieved the standard
since October 2015.
Patient flow through the health and social
care system impacts on performance against
this standard, and during 2015/16 the Leeds
health economy had one of the highest rates
of Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC) in
England.
A&E performance and system impacts and
solutions are a focus of the citywide System
Resilience Group, made up of representatives
from different health and care organisations
across Leeds, including Leeds Teaching
Hospitals Trust. We played a key role at
meetings of the System Resilience Group
during 2015/16, in addition to other citywide
and local forums in trying to improve DTOCs
and A&E performance over winter. For
example, in December 2015 we increased
community intermediate care capacity by
15%, and supported discussions to promote
community pharmacy, primary care and NHS
111 services to the public as part of a citywide
winter campaign, alleviating some of the
pressures on A&E.
We also invested in community, transport and
social care services, increasing capacity to
support the flow of patients out of hospitals
and back into the community, and to avoid
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potential hospital admissions and
readmissions. We also supported Leeds
Teaching Hospitals Trust in developing and
implementing a recovery plan for their
Emergency Departments, playing a key role
also in the system wide review of patient flow
led by NHS Leeds West CCG as lead
commissioner, and with national support from
the Trust Development Agency (TDA).
The Emergency Care Standard and levels of
DTOC are both areas that we will continue
to closely monitor throughout 2016/17,
through the work of the System Resilience
Group; as part of the emerging
Sustainability and Transformation Plan
(STP) for West Yorkshire; and the Urgent
and Emergency Care Vanguard.


●

Ambulance performance
Ambulance Red 1 response times
continued to exceed the expected
standard for patients from South and East
Leeds, with performance remaining above
the 75% target for category A calls during
2015/16. Across West Yorkshire, we along
with NHS Bradford City CCG were the only
two CCGs to have achieved this level of
performance. However, we won’t meet the
ambulance handover targets in 2015/16,
and there is a risk to delivering these going
into 2016/17. As part of our work to
improve performance, the Urgent Care
Lead Commissioner for the Leeds
continues to have monthly meetings with
the Yorkshire Ambulance Service (YAS) to
discuss operational issues, performance
and transformation.
Cancer Performance and Bowel Cancer
Screening
In November 2015, performance for the
two week wait (2WW) standard for first
outpatient appointment for patients
referred urgently with suspected cancer
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by a GP remained above the expected
standard at 96.8%, and we are expected to
meet it for 2015/16. However, the
performance year to date (YTD) continues
to be below the expected standard for first
outpatient appointment for patients
referred urgently with suspected cancer
by a GP where referral was for breast
symptoms; however performance did
improve in November to 96.2%.
Breast outpatient capacity was a
significant risk to Leeds Teaching Hospital
Trust’s ability to deliver of the Two Week
Wait (2WW) standard in 2015/16, where
sustained performance against this
standard was not expected until February
2016. To improve performance against the
standard, we worked closely with NHS
Leeds West CCG (NHS LW CCG) as lead
commissioner, and Leeds Teaching
Hospital Trust’s in developing a different
workforce model to improve performance
from February 2016.
The performance against the 31 day cancer
standard for first definitive treatment for all
cancers, and where treatment is surgery,
remained above standard targets YTD (98.5%
and 97.8% respectfully) for South and East
Leeds patients. The performance of the 62day wait from urgent GP referral to first
definitive treatment for cancer standard
continued to be met for South and East Leeds
patients (87.6% YTD) however overall LTHT
performance against this standard remains
below the expected standard at 81.5%. This is
mainly due to late external provider transfers
post day 38. The trajectories for rate of
transfer by day 38 received from referring
trusts in the region are still not being achieved
and the lead cancer and operations teams are
continuing to work with referring
organisations to improve the position.
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We have continued an intense programme of
awareness raising activity to improve bowel
cancer screening and increase uptake rates.
This has included using the quality premium
received in 2014/15 to increase resources
dedicated to the work programmes, which
collectively aim to engage with different
communities throughout our area about
bowel cancer and bowel cancer screening.
People automatically receive a simple bowel
cancer test kit in the mail when they turn 60
and every two years thereafter, up to 74 years
of age. We had a programme of community
awareness activity (such as events at local
supermarkets), social media campaigns and
supporting GP practices to remind people
about completing their test.
Over the last year we have seen an increase in
the number of people completing the test (up
to 55%) and we have ongoing plans to
increase uptake further by piloting a screening
helper pack which will be sent to all invited
people, when they receive the test kit, to help
assist with detecting bowel cancer at an early
stage when patients may have no symptoms.

●
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Maternity and Children’s Services
Our CCG led on behalf of the city the
development of the maternity strategy,
which launched in the summer of 2015.
Following the approval of the maternity
strategy by the Health and Wellbeing
Board in September 2015, working groups
are now established to review and
improve the identification and support of
emotional and mental health needs of
pregnant women and women who have
just had a baby; the working groups
continue to meet; work is underway to
undertake insight work with women who
have learning disabilities to understand
their specific experiences and issues in
relation to maternity services. In addition,

the CCGs are jointly funding, alongside the
Department of Health and the LCC (Leeds
City Council) public health team, the
embedding of the award winning Best
Beginnings “Baby Buddy”. This interactive
digital app will provide useful support and
key health promotion information, as well
as local service details throughout the
woman’s pregnancy. The Baby Buddy app
in currently being embedded into Leeds
maternity and health visiting service
provision (commenced January 2016).

Health inequality gap and Potential
Years of Life Lost (PYLL)
We are aware that health inequalities exist
across our population and see health
inequalities as a key strategic priority. Health
inequalities can be defined as differences in
health status or in the distribution of health
determinants between different population
groups. One measure is a difference in life
expectancy between different population
groups. In our area it is worth noting that
there is a difference in life expectancy
between the most affluent parts and the most
deprived areas of around 10 yrs.
We are committed to addressing the health
inequalities that exist within our population
via our strategic aim to improve the health of
the whole population and reduce inequalities
in local communities. A strategic steering
group meets regularly to co-ordinate a
portfolio of work programmes that aims to
fulfil this strategic aim. Some examples of the
key strategic outcomes in relation to strategic
aim 1 in the last year are detailed below.
Work programmes have been developed and
implemented that promote healthy lifestyle
choices. For example, following on from a
smoking insight project carried out by Leeds
Beckett University a local social media
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campaign to encourage more local people to
access stop smoking services has been carried
out. In addition, our staff members have
worked with local GP practices to carry out
activity which encourages patients to make
positive health behaviour choices, including
local GP practice supporting the increasing
uptake of the bowel cancer screening work
programme via practice champions.
Over the last year we have invested funding in
a range of a range of work programmes and
services which aim to improve overall health
and wellbeing. Recurrent funding has been
secured for Forward Leeds to provide an
enhanced local service to individuals
experiencing issues with their alcohol
consumption. In addition recurrent funding
investment has resulted in the local
enhancement of services addressing the wider
determinants of health. This includes
enhancing the Leeds warmth Through Health
contract and funding for additional Leeds CAB
financial advice sessions. New financial
investment has resulted in the development
and implementation of a new social
prescribing service for the our area, Connect
for Health which aims to support local people
to improve their overall health and wellbeing
via linking them to local community activity,
groups and support.
Not only focusing on preventable deaths we
have also put in place strategies to improve
the health and wellbeing of those living
longer, for example achieving earlier diagnosis
of long term conditions, such as coronary
heart disease, diabetes, depression and
dementia. Over the last we have continued to
implement best practice in the management
of long term conditions, including the ongoing
implementation of a Year of Care Approach in
GP Practices and local activity to increase the
uptake of the health check.
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We have also worked in partnership with key
stakeholders to tackle the wider determinants
of health including the South East Health and
Wellbeing Core Group.
We are keen to measure the outcomes that
the implementation of our work programmes
are having on patient and population health
and wellbeing. Potential years of life lost
(PYLL) amenable to healthcare is one indicator
that can be used to measure our progress
against our ambition to reduce mortality rates
in South and East Leeds. In the two-year
operational plan we set an ambitious target to
reduce PYLL from conditions considered
amenable to healthcare by 26.6% over 5 years
(from 2013 – 2018). Data for 2014 showed an
increase in the PYLL, this has followed a 3 year
period of reduction in the PYLL. The increase
in rate compared to the previous year can be
seen more in males than females. However
the 3 year rolling average continues to see a
decrease of 2.3%. Our target to reduce the
PYLL from causes considered amenable to
healthcare is more ambitious than most CCGs
and LSE CCG will continue to carry out work to
achieve this target in 2016 / 17 through a
range of focused activity.

Developing our out-of-hospital
services and local offers
A huge amount of our effort as a CCG has
gone into developing local services in the
primary, community and third sectors, to
really enhance and tailor services to meet
needs locally. This section gives you a flavour
of some of the work we have been doing.


Pulmonary Rehabilitation - A priority area
for the CCG in 2015/16 was increasing
number of people completing pulmonary
rehabilitation when compared to 2014/15
and was identified as the local quality
premium measure (10% increase in total
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numbers of people completing pulmonary
rehabilitation programme in 2015/16
compared with baseline year 2014/15).
Local work between GPs and Leeds
Community Health Care Trust has been
supplemented by clinically led discussions
as part of the Leeds Institute for Quality
Healthcare (LIQH) programme. This work
has brought clinicians and other
professionals from across Leeds to work
together to improve specific pathways,
starting with primary care leading up to
specialist hospital care. Furthermore, as
part of the citywide project led by Public
Health Leeds to support people living with
respiratory conditions (Breath Easy), we
will jointly commission 11 Breath Easy
Support Groups across Leeds from
2015/16. A peer support group for people
living with COPD, the location of the 11
Breath Easy Groups will be based on the
prevalence of COPD within the population
of Leeds.
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NHS Health Checks – NHS Health Checks
are for those aged 40 -74, with no CVD
diagnosis and our practices were the first
practices targeted in Leeds for NHS Health
Checks as they were initially aimed at
populations with highest deprivation.
There were 40 member practices
participating in the Health Check
programme this year, with 14 practices
also part of the Asda pilot which offers
flexible appointments for patients. Overall
performance since 2013/14 has been
variable, and has declined during 2014/15
and into 2015/16. For the first twoquarters of 2015/16, 5603 of the eligible
population were invited to have the test,
however only 2959 of those completed
the test (a 53% uptake). The declining
level of uptake highlights the need to
encourage uptake and raise awareness of
the programme. To help increase level of

uptake, resource packs with posters,
leaflets were shared with GPs, libraries,
and wider community venues during
quarter 3 and 4 of 2015/16. In addition,
pull up banners will be placed in target
area one stop centres, and social media
utilised to promote wider. We also aimed
to increase the uptake of the Health
Check within vulnerable groups. There
was good uptake in 2014/15 from
different ethnic groups invited, however
data to reflect levels of invite and uptake
for other vulnerable groups (including
people with a SMI and learning
disabilities) is to be carried out by Public
Health Intelligence, and is a priority going
forward to understand what work needs
to be undertaken to increase the uptake
of the Health Check.

Patient Satisfaction with Primary
Care
Continuing to support and develop Primary
Care has been one of the CCG’s priorities in
2015/16. Our Primary Care Engagement Team
has led a number of interventions in 2015/16
to improve levels of patient experience
including:


MJOG: a patient messaging service that
allows practices to text patients and
remind them of their appointments, is
now running in has gone live for the 93%
of member practices who chose to
implement the service.



The Friends and Family Test (FFT): rolledout across Primary Care in December
2014, data is collected nationally and the
CCG’s Quality Team are currently looking
into ways in which it be analysed more
effectively and shared with member
practices for improvement and shared
learning purposes
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The House of Care model: a citywide
systematic approach to the selfmanagement of long term conditions
(including the development to encompass
dementia). Forty-one member practices
have been trained and are delivering this
approach in 2015/16. Reporting, which
includes patient experience measures, has
commenced.
Care Homes Scheme: working with
patients who are hard to reach is also very
important to the CCG and Member
Practices are involved in providing
systematic care to patients in Care
Homes. This includes regular weekly visits
by the GP practice to the care home.
Patient experience is being sought in
different ways for this very specific group
of patients who often are unable to
feedback to us utilising traditional
methods, including the use of filmed
patient stories.
Quality Improvement Scheme/Primary
Care Transformation: Throughout
2015/16 the groundwork has been to
implement a truly innovative quality
improvement scheme in primary care. The
scheme was co-produced with practices
and designed in a way to help them
design specific interventions to meet their
local population needs. The scheme will
use four key enablers to support them in
devising and working toward outcomes
that matter to their patient populations:
Collaboration, Access, Long-Term
Condition Management, and Innovation
for Local Populations. Practices will need
to work together to deliver schemes
based on a minimum population of
30,000. Work has been undertaken to
test the concept and market with member
practices at an event held in autumn
2015. First bid submissions were accepted





as of 7th January 2015, four bids were
submitted by four GP practice
collaborative groups covering 90% of LSE
practices. The Collaborative hubs were
required to re-submit their planned work
in March for final sign off by the panel.
The scheme is expected to act as a
catalyst to develop new models of
primary and sustainable community
services.
General Practice Improvement
Programme: this programme supports
practices to look at ways at improving
their business systems and processes. The
programme involves the whole practice
team to embed service improvement and
lean into the practice. Areas practices are
working on include planning workforce
capacity across the year to support
effective delivery of primary care services
at busier times of the year including
winter and around bank holidays, use of
data analysis, practice MDTs, and the
review of a practice's most frequent
attenders.
Year of Care in Primary Care – Our Year of
Care (YoC) approach, an evidence based
framework for proactive patient selfmanagement of long-term conditions
(LTCs), is expected to see an improvement
in patient reported outcomes in this area
during 2015/16 and going into 2016/17.
The YoC approach supports patient's
being involved in decisions made about
their care and treatment, and in 2014/15,
the model was rolled-out across 41
member practices, where training for
practice staff (a GP, nurse, care assistant
and practice manager) was delivered.
Reporting, which includes patient
experience measures, started in October
2015 and continues to feed into future
performance reports.
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Third Sector Grants Scheme: This
innovative programme, aimed at
encouraging local communities to design
local solutions – as well as investing in the
local economy - has invested in 39
projects (totalling £1m) which support
communities to improve health and
wellbeing across the South and East of the
city. The grants helped the CCGs deliver
ambitious plans to improve health and
wellbeing, prevent ill health and
ultimately aim to enable local people to
lead healthier lives. Their aim is to
address some of the significant health
challenges in the South and East of Leeds,
including mental health, social isolation
and obesity as well as helping to reduce
pressures for GPs and A&E services. All
funds are managed and assessed by the
city’s largest independent grant-maker,
Leeds Community Foundation. Leeds
Community Foundation in partnership
with LSE CCG are now focussing on the
evaluation of the schemes to ensure a
robust process is completed for each
scheme and decisions about future
funding can be made on an informed
basis.

Staff and Organisational
Development
We seek feedback from our staff by way of
the national NHS staff survey and local
surveys. This enables us to measure staff
satisfaction across a range of factors in order
to continuously improve. The responses to a
range of questions within the national NHS
staff survey combine to provide an overall
indicator of staff engagement (engagement
with their work, their team and their
organisation). Our overall staff engagement
score saw us featured as one of the top 20
CCGs in the best places to work in the NHS list
in 2015. We work alongside our staff and use
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the results from surveys as well as other
feedback to develop plans to further improve,
and create a positive work environment.
Ensuring the health of our organisation is
important to us in order to deliver our
ambitious plans. We were successfully
certificated as an Investor in Excellence in
2015/16 and are continuing to use the
Standard as a framework against which to
continuously improve to deliver success
efficiently and effectively across the whole
organisation.

2.2 Key performance
measures
As an organisation, we monitor and report
against a range of performance measures
through a series of reports that help us keep
track of how we are doing against our TwoYear Operational Plan.
We recognise the importance for all of our
members of staff to understand how we are
doing and how our progress is impacting
health outcomes for the people of Leeds
South and East. Therefore much work has
been done to improve how we share
information with staff to understand what we
do and how well we perform; how what we
do contributes to positive patient outcomes;
and how their role contributes to our plans
and objectives. As part of the Leeds Institute
of Quality Healthcare programme, our CCG
delivered a series of learning lunches for staff
on Statistical Process Control Charts in June
2015, and how to interpret them as a tool to
improve service performance.
Following the learning lunches, an area of the
staff breakout area is now used to display
performance using the Statistical Process
Control Charts and a summary narrative to
share and convey performance information
on both local and citywide measures. The

NHS Leeds South and East Clinical Commissioning Group

selection of measures on display changes to
reflect the range of strategic aims, priorities
and progress being made, and staff have the
opportunity to comment and ask questions
about performance during the bi-monthly
Team Brief sessions.
We feel that this approach has helped our
staff feel empowered to ask questions about
who we are and what we do, and importantly,
how well we are doing!
The Integrated Performance Report
summarises our performance against the
Two-Year Operational Plan and includes our
strategic priorities dashboard and
performance highlights and exceptions
against the NHS Constitution Standards. This
report goes to the Governing Body via the
Finance, Activity and Performance Committee
for discussion, and provides an overview of
performance against commissioned services
year to date. It includes detail from the
following reports;
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Outcomes framework performance
dashboard. This is our main summary
which demonstrates our performance as
assurance to NHS England and focuses on
key national objectives and measures of
us as a CCG;
Commissioning update. This is a narrative
around current commissioning activities,
contract performance and primary care;
Financial Performance report. This report
provides details of performance against
statutory financial duties and key financial
indicators. This information is provided
regularly to the Governing Body,
Executive Management Team, Finance,
Activity and Performance Committee,
Audit and Governance Committee and
Senior Management Team;
Quality report. This is compiled
specifically for the Quality Committee but
also feeds into the Integrated





Performance Report. It shows
performance against a range of patient
outcomes;
Workforce report - This shows our
performance against staff measures. The
report is presented to the Finance,
Activity and Performance Committee and
the Senior Management Team; and
Citywide dashboard – We monitor
achievement against the citywide health
and well-being strategy on a monthly
basis and those aspects which impact on
our plan and objectives. A new citywide
Health and Well-Being Strategy was
published in March 2016 by the Leeds
Health and Well-Being Board. The new
strategy aims to reflect the changing
landscape within which the healthcare is
required to operate since the first
strategy was published in 2013. Whilst the
problems that we are all trying to solve
may remain the same, the environment in
which this work gets done is different.

2.3 Sustainability
We have a role to play in improving the
environmental, social and financial
performance of the NHS, working towards the
achievement of the NHS Carbon footprint
reduction targets in 2020 and beyond. The
sustainable development project is led by the
Head of Corporate Improvement with
executive level sponsorship from our Chief
Operating Officer.
Our Sustainable Development Management
Plan (SDMP) was developed as part of our
authorisation and assurance process and is
reviewed annually. The most recent plan was
approved in May 2015 and progress is
reviewed by the Finance, Activity and
Performance committee every six months.
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While our direct organisation environmental
impact equates to less than 1% of the
emissions of the services we commission we
do actively monitor and look to reduce this
impact where we can.

further assess our progress in these nine
areas.

We moved to new, larger, premises in January
2015 and this has impacted our energy use.
Recycling rates deteriorated during this
transition but have now returned to previous
levels.
Figure 1 – carbon emissions through energy use, 2013-2016

Figure 2 – waste breakdown in tonnes, 2013-2016

Good Corporate Citizen Assessment
The Good Corporate Citizen model is a selfassessment tool to benchmark organisational
progress towards sustainable development
good practice. We undertook a baseline
assessment of our progress in May 2015. The
scores for each area are presented below,
with a comparison to other CCGs recently
undertaking the assessment. The assessment
and comparisons will support us to identify
priority areas for further development. We
will update this assessment during 2016 to
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Progress against the SDMP

expectations clear and measurable, and then
monitoring these standards closely.

Staff behaviour change programme
The ‘CCGreen Team’ of environment
champions are active in contributing to
promotional events including our ‘My
CCGreen Pledge’ campaign launched in 2016,
to encourage staff engagement.
Commissioning for Social Value
We are involved in an innovative national
programme that examines health and social
value within a city-wide context, where we
are in the process of developing a common
approach to commissioning for social value
across Leeds. This partnership approach had
led to the commitment to a social value
charter from partners including the three
Leeds CCGs, health commissioners from Leeds
City Council, and a range of third sector
organisations in the city.
SDMP review for 2016/17
We recognise the importance of working
together and sharing a commitment to
sustainable development, with this ambition
in mind we are working with both Leeds North
and Leeds West CCGs to develop common
objectives within our SDMP for 2016/17 and
beyond. This plan will focus on:
 A joint transport and travel reduction
programme
 Developing a framework for the
evaluation of Social Value
 Understanding the social and
environmental impacts of care pathways

2.5 Quality
We continue to place quality at the core of all
our functions and commissioning practice,
and at the centre of all our discussions with
providers. We do this by making our
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Five elements drive the work of the Quality
team:
 Patient safety
 Patient experience
 Clinical effectiveness
 Responsiveness
 Being well-led

Organisations from which we commission
care are required to meet essential standards
of quality and safety as defined through Care
Quality Commission (CQC) standards. As
commissioners we set out quality
requirements for our providers that are above
the essential requirements defined by the
CQC. We work closely with our acute, mental
health and community services to ensure that
they meet these requirements and standards
and we monitor them throughout the year,
providing challenge where standards are not
as expected or required. To drive our quality
agenda we refreshed our Quality Strategy
which sets out how we assure ourselves of the
quality of care that we commission. We
agreed the strategy with partner CCGs in
Leeds and will publish it on our website.
Patient safety
Following the extensive reviews, we
undertook in 2014-15 of key patient safety
publications including the Francis Report,
Bruce Keogh, Don Berwick, Jane Cummings
and the Jimmy Savile enquiry we developed a
professional standards action plan, to ensure
clear responsibilities for executive and
managerial leads and monitoring processes.
This plan has been completed and we are
confident that our processes are robust
enough to monitor all aspects of patient
safety and quality.
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Healthcare Associated Infections

Serious incidents

Clostridium Difficile

The CCG Governance Team receives
notification of any serious incident that has
occurred within a provider of NHS healthcare
in Leeds. The team is responsible for risk
assessing any immediate impact on the
organisation and informing directors of what
has happened. The provider organisation is
then monitored in reporting, investigating and
learning from the incident. In 2015-16 a total
number of 278 serious incidents have been
reported to the CCG involving patients from
Leeds.

We have continued to work with provider and
primary care colleagues to implement actions
to support a reduction of cases of Clostridium
Difficile across the CCG and city. We continue
to work with the acute trust, our medicine
management team and primary care
colleagues in implementing strategies to
further reduce the incidence of C. Difficile.
This includes reducing inappropriate antibiotic
prescribing which is linked with C. Difficile
infection.
We recognise that infection control practice in
Care Homes particularly with regard to
catheter care varies across the numerous care
homes in Leeds, and that this can present a
higher risk to this group of patients. In
partnership with Leeds North CCG, we
commissioned a project nurse for 12 months,
employed by Leeds Community Health Care,
to educate and support care home staff to
improve individualized quality care and
standardize practice. This project has now
completed, with some clear
recommendations for continuing the post. A
business case has been submitted to our
quality committees for discussion.

131 of these serious incidents were pressure
ulcers category 3 and 4. The CCG serious
incident review panel is tasked with reviewing
submitted reports and action plans from the
providers to gain assurance that the provider
concerned has undertaken a robust
investigation, identified the reasons for the
incident occurring and put in place actions to
prevent something similar from happening
again.
Never Events
Provider
Nuffield Hospital
Claremont Hospital
Sheffield
Leeds Teaching Hospital
NHS trust

MRSA
As of end of February 2016 there were three
cases of MRSA infection for our patients,
which were attributed to the
community. One case was identified by the
investigation panel as unavoidable. We
continue to work with our colleagues across
the city in the investigation of each case to
ensure that the root causes of the infection
are identified and lessons learned are applied.
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Never event type
Wrong site surgery (1)
Wrong site surgery (1)
Wrong implant (1)
Wrong site surgery (3)
Retained foreign object (1)

Certain types of serious incident are termed
Never Events. These are incident types that, if
the necessary safety systems are in place and
operating effectively, are expected not to
occur.
Never Events are nationally defined and most
apply primarily to acute hospital care. These
types of incident are subject to further
detailed scrutiny from the CCG and work is
ongoing to ensure learning from all
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investigations is introduced and embedded in
practice. This table describes the seven Never
Events that have occurred within Leeds
healthcare providers and involving Leeds
Patients during 2015/16.

information is obtained in a coordinated and
timely manner. Our Chief Officer reviews and
responds to all complaints received within the
CCG ensuring that they are aware of any
issues and can ensure that wider learning can
be adopted to improve our services.

Patient experience

Patient Advice and Liaison Service

Friends and Family Test

People’s views have been gathered through
our Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS).
The service aims to answer queries, resolve
any concerns people may have or signpost
people to appropriate services as well as
providing ‘on the spot’ non-medical advice to
patients. They have recorded compliments,
comments and concerns in relation to
patients’ experience of local healthcare
services and these are used to improve local
services. During 2015-2016 the main issues
raised related to access to NHS services,
waiting times for appointments and concerns
regarding the clinical care or treatment
received.

The Friends and Family Test is now in use
across every provider and the Quality team
monitor response rates and results of our
major providers and address any issues with
the relevant trust around levels of response
and/or satisfaction.

Responding to concerns and complaints
We take complaints seriously as they are a
genuine means of helping the improvement of
services. They also help us to manage our
performance and highlight any areas where
closer monitoring may be needed. In 20152016 we managed 22 formal complaints. 15 of
these complaints related to provider services
commissioned by the CCG and 7 related
directly to the CCG. As well as providing a
response to the individual complainants all
lessons learned from complaints are reviewed
with a view to making changes in practice,
systems and processes to improve the future
experience for everybody.
Principles for Good Complaint Handling
We apply all six principles of remedy when
handling all complaints as outlined in the CCG
complaints policy. All complaints are dealt
with on an individual basis as per the person’s
requirements and are provided with advice on
how to access local advocacy services for
support. We liaise with our partner
organisations to ensure that the appropriate
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The Quality team continue to work
collaboratively across the city to share patient
feedback and support the triangulation of key
sources of patient experience data. This
includes intelligence received from the PALS
service, feedback from websites such as
Patient Opinion and NHS Choices and
complaints information.
To support us in using our patient feedback in
an effective way, we are one of ten CCGs
working with NHS England and Macmillan on
a project called ‘Commissioning for a Better
Patient Experience’. One result of this work
will be the development of some consensus
statements to promote discussion about how
to achieve this. We also hope to work more
closely with providers across the city to
understand our individual responsibilities and

NHS Leeds South and East Clinical Commissioning Group

develop some shared, citywide goals for how
we seek, use and share patient experience.

Clinical effectiveness
We have close working relationships with
healthcare providers to ensure quality
commitments are open, transparent and
being actioned. For example:





Implementation of NICE guidance relevant
to the organisation
Action required following CQC inspections
to our providers. This includes having
oversight of action plans produced by the
providers.
Monitoring of national and local quality
improvement measures such as
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation
(CQUIN) initiatives.

Through regular meetings with all our
providers we are able to ensure that
standards are monitored. Where concerns
regarding the achievement of quality
commitments are identified remedial action
plans are put in place and additional reporting
is made to the CCG to ensure that standards
are achieved.

2.6 Safeguarding
We have a legal responsibility to ensure the
needs of children and adults at risk of abuse
or suffering abuse are addressed in all the
work that we undertake and commission on
behalf of the people of Leeds. Our Clinical
Chief Officer has overall responsibility for
Safeguarding. The Director of Nursing and
Quality is the executive lead for safeguarding.
The Team now comprises of a Head of
Safeguarding/Senior Designated Nurse for
Safeguarding Children and Adults at Risk who
provides strategic leadership for safeguarding
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and advice across the health agencies and is
supported by a Deputy Head/Designated
Nurse for Safeguarding Children and Adults at
Risk, a Deputy Designated Nurse for
Safeguarding Children and Adults at
Risk/MCA, DoLS Lead and a named GP for
Safeguarding Children who provides
leadership and support within Primary Care.
The team is currently recruiting two Named
Nurses for Safeguarding Children and Adults
at Risk. This model fully integrates and reflects
the ‘Think Family, Work Family’ approach
adopted by Leeds.
The CCG Safeguarding Children and Adults at
Risk Committee meets bi-monthly,
membership includes commissioners,
Designated Nurses, Designated Doctors, and
the Directors of Nursing and Quality. The
Safeguarding Committee reports into each
CCG’s individual governance structure. The
Safeguarding Committee leads work on behalf
of all three Leeds CCGs through an agreed
action plan and monitors compliance of
agreed safeguarding standards through a
performance framework and audit.
Summary of achievements in 2015/16 and
emerging themes:
Overall, 2015/2016 has seen an expansion of
the safeguarding agenda nationally, regionally
and locally. The safeguarding agenda now
includes additional responsibilities including:
human trafficking, modern slavery, forced
marriage, domestic violence, FGM, DoLS in
the community, Prevent and the DASM role.
The safeguarding team are making good
progress in responding to the additional
demands of the safeguarding agenda. Going
forward under delegated arrangements of cocommissioning CCGs will be responsible for
ensuring that the GP services commissioned
have effective safeguarding arrangements and
are compliant with the MCA. NHS England will
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require assurance that such arrangements are
in place before CCGs take on such
responsibility. The overall effectiveness of
CCGs in discharging their safeguarding and
MCA duties will also be monitored as part of
the CCG assurance process.
In summary, the key achievements and
emerging themes for 2015/2016 and the key
challenges for 2016/2017 include the
following;








Achievements:
 Revised Training Strategy and Training
Programme to reflect the amended
Working Together to Safeguard Children
(HM Government 2015) and Safeguarding
Children and young people: roles and
competences for health care staff (RCPH
2014).
 Restructure of the Safeguarding Team.
 Improved engagement with young people
through the Children’s Commissioner’s
Takeover Day and The Cupboard Project.
 More robust monitoring of the
safeguarding standards and KPI’s via
attendance at Provider Quality and
Performance Group Meetings.
 The appointment of a Named Nurse for
Safeguarding Children and Adults to the
CCGs Safeguarding Team.
 Involvement in the development of health
representation at Children’s Social Care
Duty and Advice Team, the Front Door
Safeguarding Hub, and the Safe Project –
Multi-Agency CSE Team.
 Further investment in implementing the
Mental Capacity across health services
 Huge increase in the number of DoLS
applications from health services, rising to
challenge of Cheshire West.
 Working with the LSAB to implement the
Care Act and Making Safeguarding
Personal across the health economy
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A large increase in the numbers of health
staff accessing Prevent training,
subsequent awareness of factors
influencing those who are a risk of being
radicalised into terrorism.
Full involvement from CCG and health
providers in the DHR process and lessons
learned being implemented.
Raising the profile of Safeguarding, MCA,
DoLS, Prevent and domestic abuse in
primary care.
There is a strong commitment to
improving GP engagement with the child
protection process.
Robust systems are in place for the
cascading of lessons learned from Serious
Case Reviews, Learning Lessons reviews
etc.

Emerging themes:













Strong multi-agency partnership working
including internal and external partners at
both operational and strategic level.
Commitment to single and multi-agency
training and development.
Commitment to the work of the LSCB and
LSAB Sub-groups.
Increased support for the domestic
violence agenda including the Front Door
Safeguarding Hub and the DHR process.
Commitment to manage and support the
expanding field of safeguarding including
Prevent, human trafficking, child sexual
exploitation, forced marriage and female
genital mutilation.
Commitment to improving access to
emotional and mental health support and
services for children and young people in
Leeds.
Commitment to the development of the
enhanced health offer to care leavers.
Commitment to providing support to the
Lead GPs for Safeguarding Children via GP
Peer Support Group Meetings.
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The Designated Nurses continue to
provide supervision to Named Nurses
across the health economy. The Named
GP offers supervision for GPs as
requested. The Designated Doctors
provide supervision for the Named
Doctors within provider agencies and the
Named GP.
A strong commitment to improving GP
engagement with the child protection
process.

Challenges for 2016/17:
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To continue to promote and support GPs
engagement with the child protection
process.
To continue to support the Domestic
Violence agenda, including supporting the
DHR process and the challenges around
capacity and resources.
To continue to support and manage the
expanding field of safeguarding including
the Prevent agenda, human trafficking,
child sexual exploitation, forced marriage
and female genital mutilation, modern
slavery, domestic violence, FGM.
To continue to support the local authority
and health providers to ensure that all
DoLS applications are made and
authorised within legal timeframes.
Make applications to the Court of
Protection for deprivation of liberty
authorisations for those who receive care
in their own homes and are funded
through continuing healthcare.
To continue to support health’s
contribution to the multi-agency ‘Front
















Door’ arrangements, including the Front
Door Safeguarding Hub and the Safe
Project – Multi-Agency CSE Team and
consider identified challenges of the
interface between the ‘Front Door’ and
Primary Care
To continue to improve engagement with
children, young people and adults at risk.
To continue to meet the challenges of
increased number of training sessions
required to meet the needs of primary
care
To continue to support and embed the
‘Early Help’ approach and the ‘Think
Family, Work Family’ guidance across the
health economy.
To promote the Student LSCB poster on
how to make a complaint to raise
awareness on how children and young
people can make a complaint.
Implementing a system for flagging
domestic abuse in GP records
Supporting the development and restructuring of the LSAB
Working with NHS England to support GP
practices to comply with all aspects of the
primary care safeguarding assurance
framework.
Implementing the Safeguarding Adults:
Roles and competences for health care
staff – Intercollegiate Document (NHS
England 2016)
Joint commissioning of primary care
services, particularly as we move towards
fully delegated arrangements
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3. PERFORMANCE MEASURES
3.1 Financial performance
The financial performance of the CCG has been strong in 15/16, with all financial performance
indicators and statutory duties having been met.

The financial duties of the CCG as set out by NHS England are listed below.
●
●
●
●
●

Expenditure not to exceed the revenue resource limit in any one year
Expenditure not to exceed its capital resource limit in any one year
To remain within its cash limit in any one year
To remain within the running costs target
To deliver (at least) a 1% surplus

In addition the CCG should comply with the Better Payment Practice Code, which requires the
payment of all invoices within 30 days or agreed contract terms. The CCG’s allocations and
performance against key financial indicators are summarised below:
Financial Performance Report 2015/16
Financial indicators
CCG Expenditure does not exceed planned level
Programme expenditure does not exceed programme allocation
Running costs expenditure does not exceed running costs allocation
Planned Surplus
Better Payment Practice Code (Number)
Better Payment Practice Code (Value)
CCG cash drawdown does not exceed cash limit

Target
£000
371,941
366,139
5,802
9,369
95%
95%
366,349

Performance
£000
362,501
357,289
5,212
9,439
99.1%
99.8%
364,688

Achieved
(y/n)
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

Investment and resource plans have been targeted at delivering our Strategic Aims focused on
having the greatest impact on the health and wellbeing of the population of Leeds South & East.
Accordingly, in a range of national and local priorities agreed with its partners, NHS LSE CCG set
aside funds to invest in a number of key areas already highlighted in this annual report.
In order to fund this significant investment a number of ambitious quality, innovation, productivity
and prevention (QIPP) savings or cost avoidance schemes were identified to deliver a target of
£9.3m. The CCG achieved this target.
The graph shows how the CCG’s resources have been spent over the last two years and reflects the
CCGs ambition of supporting care closer to home through increasing spend towards community
services and mental health services:
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Further details of the CCG’s financial performance are shown in the annual accounts for the financial
year ending 31 March 2016.
The Governing Body is responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports
the achievement of the CCG’s policies, aims and objectives. This is detailed further within the Annual
Governance Statement.

3.2 CCG assurance
framework
Since we were establishment as a statutory
body on 1 April 2013, NHS Leeds South and
East CCG has participated in an annual
assurance process led by NHS England. In
2015-16 the assurance framework consists of
the following five components:
1. Well-led organisation
2. Performance delivery of commitments
and improved outcomes
3. Financial Management
4. Planning
5. Delegated Functions
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As part of this process we have regular
meetings with the NHS England Regional
Team to ensure consistent and continued
involvement with NHS England. This ensures
that areas of discussion in terms of
performance, wider impacts and challenges
can be maintained.
We continue to be assessed as fully assured as
part of this process.

NHS Leeds South and East Clinical Commissioning Group

3.3 Better Care Fund
As part of the initial development of the
Better Care Fund (BCF) in Leeds, a Partnership
Agreement with Leeds City Council and the
other two Leeds CCGs (Leeds North CCG and
Leeds West CCG) has been put in place that
describes the commissioning arrangements
for a range of health and social care
services. The four funds are hosted by either
Leeds City Council or one of the Leeds CCGs.
The BCF Partnership Agreement is based on

the national template developed by NHS
England and Bevan Brittan, and it includes
Pooled funds (Section 75) and Non-pooled
funds (Section 256/Section 76), which in
totality make up the Leeds Better Care Fund
for 2015/16. All funds are all overseen by a
joint BCF Partnership Board. A summary is
tabled below:

Contributions

Fund 1
Fund 2
Fund 3
Fund 4

CCG Hosted s75 Agreements
Council Hosted s75 Agreements
CCG Hosted Non-Pooled Funds
Council Hosted Non-Pooled Funds
Contingency
Total

3.4 Friends and Family test
The Friends and Family Test is now rolled out
across all our providers and the Quality
Managers monitor results and address any
issues with the relevant trust around response
rate and levels of satisfaction. There has been
very little variation in results over the last 12
months, and the data has highlighted that
patients would be very likely to recommended
services and Leeds benchmark well against
regional organisations.

Leeds
South &
East CCG
(£'000s)

Leeds
North
CCG
(£'000s)

Leeds
City
Council
(£'000s)

Leeds
West CCG
(£'000s)

4,125
1,396
5,392
5,887
551

4,675
1,560
5,871
7,266
733

2,766
922
3,522
4,822
633

0
3,144
0
4,802
0

11,566
7,022
14,785
22,777
1,917

17,351

20,105

12,665

7,946

58,067

of key sources of patient experience data. To
support us in this work we are one of ten
CCGs working with McMillan on a project to
better understand how we can use Patient
Experience to inform our commissioning
intentions.

3.5 Outcomes framework
NHS Constitution Standard risks and Local
Indicators have already been included in
previous sections

We are working closely with colleagues across
the city to develop a patient experience
feedback process to support the triangulation
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Total

3.6 Patient and Public
Involvement – reporting on
how we have met our duty
to involve/engage
We are committed to putting patients, carers
and the wider public at the heart of
everything we do. As well as working on a
range of engagement projects, we have also
developed ways in which patients and
members of the public can get involved with
us directly. For example:
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Patient representatives on our Governing
Body Patient Assurance Group which
assures us that engagement and
consultation is conducted robustly and
rigorously and includes representation
from all parts of the community in our
CCG.
Our Neighbourhood Leader Group has
representatives from each of the electoral
wards in Leeds South and East, making
sure communities in our area have a voice
in the development of our commissioning
plans.
Our Patient Engagement Network is open
to anyone from the south and east of
Leeds. This provides an opportunity for us
to hear what is happening in the area and
more widely across the City. Discussions
have included: our commissioning
priorities, winter planning, bringing care
closer to home (co-commissioning). Click
here for further information on how to
get involved in the Network
We also want to ensure we have as many
people on our MyNHS MyVoice database
so we can let them know about new
pieces of engagement work and invite
them to any of our open events and
activities. Click here for further
information.



During 2015-16 we welcomed year 12 and
13 students from Temple Moor High
School to our CCG for Children’s Takeover
Day. During the day, the students learned
what we did, and how we used the money
we had to pay for the health services in
our area. They also gained an
understanding of behaviours and other
environmental issues that contributed to
ill-health. See the report here.

We have also carried out a number of surveys,
some of these are ongoing. A few that have
been completed leading to a new or revised
service include the following:
 Connect for Health: We have conducted a
review on the development of a social
prescribing service. The review looked at
the possibility of providing a single point
of access to a wide range of community
groups and activities in the area to reduce
social isolation and improve health and
wellbeing. This launched under the name
Connect for Health and provides GPs and
other professionals with a useful contact
service for people who are needing help
and support.
 Mindmate: Following a review of the
support available in Leeds for young
people around mental health, young
people, their families and professionals
told us a website that offered self-help
and signposting to services would be
helpful. We worked with our NHS
partners in Leeds, Leeds City Council and
charities and other organisations to
develop this website, with lots of input
from young people. MindMate, was
launched in September 2015 and is being
promoted via schools, colleges, GP
practices, and on social media. It provides
a range of information and support for
children and young people, parents,
carers and professionals. Further
engagement is planned for 2016-17 to
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develop content and approve it with
relevant audiences and make the website
more interactive.
Children’s Physiotherapy Service: The
Children’s Physiotherapy Service was
reviewed to simplify and improve
pathways for children and their families.
As part of the review we undertook a
patient engagement exercise using the
Experience Based Design methodology
(this aimed to find out the parents/carers
direct experience of the service). This
showed that the children’s physiotherapy
service was of a high standard with
flexible appointment times and a range of
venues across the city. However, the
referral process needed changing as there
were significant time delays depending on
who made the referral. As a
consequence, referrals are now accepted
by the service directly from secondary
care consultants and information on how
to refer has been re-circulated to General
Practices.

3.7 Reducing health
inequalities
Two key objectives for us are improving
health and reducing inequality. In relation to
reducing inequalities we have a commitment
to contribute to the reduction in differences
in life expectancy between communities in
the city. PYLL (potential years of life lost)
amenable to healthcare is one indicator that
can be used to measure progress against our
ambition to reduce mortality rates in South
and East Leeds.
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In our two-year operational plan, we set an
ambitious target to reduce PYLL from
conditions considered amenable to healthcare
by 26.6% over five years from 2013 – 2018.
Data for 2014 showed an increase in the PYLL,
this has followed a three-year period of
reduction in the PYLL. The increase in rate
compared to the previous year can be seen
more in males than females. However, the
three-year rolling average continues to see a
decrease of 2.3%.
One of our main strategic aims is to improve
the health of the whole population and
reduce inequalities in our local communities.
A steering group meets regularly to coordinate a portfolio of programmes that aims
to fulfil this strategic aim. This work
programme includes a range of projects,
schemes and initiatives including, for
example, activity to improve the uptake of the
bowel cancer screening test, enhancing local
work that addresses the wider determinants
of health and workstreams that encourages
more local people to make a successful
smoking quit attempt and drink alcohol at
sensible levels.
See also Health inequality gap and Potential
Years of Life Lost (PYLL) (2.1)

Dr Andrew Harris
Clinical Chief Officer/Accountable Officer
19 May 2016
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4. THE
ACCOUNTABILITY
REPORT
4.1 Corporate Governance
Report

During 2015-2016 the number of GP NonExecutive members increased from three to
four, these members represent the voice of
Member Practices, ensuring that these are
integral to the CCG’s decision making process
on the Governing Body. The Governing Body
also has a Non-Executive Secondary Care
Consultant.

Our Governing Body has a diverse range of
skills and experience and brings together
clinicians, lay representatives and
management staff. It is led by a Lay Chair,
Philip Lewer, who works closely with the
CCG’s Clinical Chief Officer, Dr Andrew Harris.

There are three Lay Members, including the
Lay Chair, Lay member for Audit and
Governance and Lay member for Patient and
Public Involvement. During the year, the lay
members have actively provided scrutiny and
challenge to the way in which the CCG fulfils
its functions, by their membership and
involvement on the Governing Body and
Committees.

Meetings are held bi-monthly and in public.
The agenda and papers are published on our
website.

Full details of the Governing Body and
Committee activity can be found in the
Annual Governance Statement.

The role of our Governing Body is to:
 Oversee and make sure that the CCG has
appropriate arrangements in place to
exercise its functions effectively,
efficiently and economically and in
accordance with the CCG’s principles of
good governance (its main function); and
 Make sure that decisions about changes
to local health services are made in an
open and transparent way.

Below is the Governing Body Membership
including those who are members of the
Executive Management Team (shown in
bold):

4.1.1 The Directors Report

We have five Executive Directors, who are
officers of the CCG: the Clinical Chief Officer
(Accountable Officer); the Chief Finance
Officer (Deputy Accountable Officer); the
Chief Operating Officer; the Medical Director
and the Director of Nursing and Corporate
Affairs – formerly the Director of Nursing and
Quality. The Consultant in Public Health is also
a member of the Executive Management
Team.
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Philip Lewer – Lay Chair
Dr. Andrew Harris – Clinical Chief Officer
(Accountable Officer)
Mark Bradley – Chief Finance Officer
Matthew Ward – Chief Operating Officer
Dr. David Mitchell – Medical Director
Ellie Monkhouse – Director of Nursing and
Quality (Resigned 26 Nov 2015)
Maureen Kelly – Acting Director of Nursing
and Corporate Affairs (From 29 Feb 2016)
Victoria Eaton – Public Heath Consultant
Brian Roebuck – Lay Member (Audit and
Governance)
Gordon Tollefson – Lay Member (Patient and
Public Engagement)
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Roderick Robertson – Secondary Care
Consultant
Dr Benjamin Browning – GP Non-Executive
Director
Dr. Tom Gibbs - GP Non-Executive Director
(Resigned 23 July 2015)
Dr. Alistair Walling - GP Non-Executive
Director (Resigned 23 July 2015)
Dr Helen Haywood (Elected 6 Nov 2015)
Dr. Arshad Rafique (Elected 6 Nov 2015)
Dr. Amal Paul (Elected 6 Nov 2015)

Our Audit and Governance Committee
members are:-

In Attendance (Non-voting):
Maureen Kelly – Assistant Director of Nursing
and Quality (26 Nov 2015-28 Feb 2016).
Cath Roff – (Director of Adult Social Services –
Leeds City Council - from 28 Jan 2016)

Details of Declared Interests

Audit and Governance Committee
Our Audit and Governance Committee is a key
part of our governance and assurance
framework and supports the organisation to
achieve its goals, objectives and
responsibilities to its stakeholders.
The Audit and Governance Committee was
established to provide the Governing Body
with an independent and objective review of
its financial systems, financial information and
compliance with laws, guidance and
regulations governing the NHS.
The committee is appointed by the Governing
Body from its non-executive members and
consists of not less than three members, with
a quorum being two members. The Chief
Finance Officer and representatives from
internal and external audit, counter fraud and
CCG management are also in attendance.
During the financial year April 2015 to March
2016 eight Audit and Governance Committee
meetings were held.
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Brian Roebuck – Lay Member (Audit and
Governance)
Gordon Tollefson – Lay Member (Patient and
Public Engagement)
Dr Benjamin Browning – GP Non-Executive
Director
Dr. Arshad Rafique (1 Jan 2916)

The CCG holds Registers of Interest declared
by:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

Members of the CCG
Members of the CCG’s
Governing Body
Members of the CCG’s
Committees or Sub-Committees
CCG employees

In accordance with our Constitution and the
Conflict of Interests Policy, our Clinical Chief
Officer must be informed of any interest
which may lead to a conflict with the interests
of the CCG and the public for whom they
commission services. The interests to be
included in the Register need to be notified
within 28 days of the individual becoming
aware of the potential for a conflict. The
Register will be updated regularly (at no more
than three -monthly intervals).
The Registers of Interest can be found here.
Personal Data related incidents
The CCG has not reported any personal data
related incidents to the Information
Commissioners Office. Further details on data
security can be found in the Annual
Governance Statement.
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4.1.2 Statement as to Disclosure to
Auditors

Group Accountable Officer Appointment
Letter.

Each Director at the time the Directors’
Report being produced knows of no
information which would be relevant to the
auditors for the purposes of their audit
report, and of which the auditors are not
aware, and; has taken “all steps that he or she
ought to have taken” to make himself/herself
aware of any such information and to
establish that the auditors are aware of it.

Under the National Health Service Act 2006
(as amended), NHS England has directed each
Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for
each financial year financial statements in the
form and on the basis set out in the Accounts
Direction. The financial statements are
prepared on an accruals basis and must give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Clinical Commissioning Group and of its net
expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and
cash flows for the financial year.

4.1.3 Statement of Accountable
Officer’s Responsibilities
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as
amended) states that each Clinical
Commissioning Group shall have an
Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be
appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board
(NHS England). NHS England has appointed
the Clinical Chief Officer to be the
Accountable Officer of the Clinical
Commissioning Group.
The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer,
including responsibilities for the property and
regularity of the public finances for which the
Accountable Officer is answerable, for
keeping proper accounting records (which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Clinical
Commissioning Group and enable them to
ensure that the accounts comply with the
requirements of the Accounts Direction) and
for safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning
Group’s assets (and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities),
are set out in the Clinical Commissioning
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In preparing the financial statements, the
Accountable Officer is required to comply
with the requirements of the Manual of
Accounts issued by the Department of Health
and in particular to:
 Observe the Accounts Direction issued by
NHS England, including the relevant
accounting and disclosure requirements
and apply suitable accounting policies on
a consistent basis;
 Make judgements and estimates on a
reasonable basis;
 State whether applicable accounting
standards are set out in the Manual for
Accounts issued by the Department of
Health have been followed and disclose
and explain any material departures in the
financial statements; and
 Prepare the financial statements on a
going concern basis.
As Accountable Officer I can confirm that as
far as I am aware there is no relevant audit
information of which the auditors are
unaware, and I have taken all the steps I
ought to have taken to make myself aware of
any relevant audit information and to
establish that the auditors are aware of that
information. In addition I confirm that the
annual report and accounts as a whole is fair,
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balanced and understandable and that I take
personal responsibility for the annual report
and accounts and the judgements required for
determining that it is fair, balanced and
understandable.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I
have properly discharged the responsibilities
set out in my Clinical Commissioning Group
Accountable Officer Appointment Letter.

Dr Andrew Harris
Clinical Chief Officer / Accountable Officer
19 May 2016
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5. ANNUAL
GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT 2015-16
Governance Statement by the
Clinical Chief Officer as the
Accountable Officer for NHS Leeds
South and East CCG
Introduction and context
The clinical commissioning group was licenced
from 1 April 2013 under provisions enacted in
the Health and Social Care Act 2012, which
amended the National Health Service Act
2006.
As at 1 April 2015, the clinical commissioning
group was licensed without conditions.
NHS Leeds South and East CCG is made up of
42 GP practices in the South and East of Leeds
City. We cover a population of around
257,000 people and the area includes some of
Leeds’ most deprived communities; inner city
neighbourhoods and affluent rural areas on
the outskirts of the city.

Scope of responsibility
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of the
clinical commissioning group’s policies, aims
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public
funds and assets for which I am personally
responsible, in accordance with the
responsibilities assigned to me in Managing
Public Money. I also acknowledge my
responsibilities as set out in my Clinical
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Commissioning Group Accountable Officer
Appointment Letter.
I am responsible for ensuring that the clinical
commissioning group is administered
prudently and economically and that
resources are applied efficiently and
effectively, safeguarding financial propriety
and regularity.

Compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code
Whilst we are not required to comply with the
UK Corporate Governance Code, we have
reported on our corporate governance
arrangements by drawing upon best practice
including those aspects of the UK corporate
governance code we consider relevant to our
CCG and best practice.

The Clinical Commissioning Group
Governance Framework
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as
amended), at paragraph 14L (2)(b) states:
The main function of the governing body is to
ensure that the group has made appropriate
arrangements for ensuring that it complies
with such generally accepted principles of
good governance as are relevant to it.
Our Constitution has been formally agreed by
our Member Practices and sets out the
arrangements for discharging our statutory
responsibilities for commissioning care on
behalf of our population. It describes our
governing principles, rules and procedures
that ensure probity and accountability in the
day to day running of our CCG, clarifying how
decisions are made in an open and
transparent way and in the interest of
patients and the public.

NHS Leeds South and East Clinical Commissioning Group

More specifically, our Constitution includes:
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Our Membership
The area we cover
The arrangements for the discharge of our
functions and those of our Governing
Body (including roles and responsibilities
of members of the Governing Body)
The procedures we follow in making
decisions and to secure transparency in
decision making
Arrangements for discharging our duties
in relation to Registers of Interests and
managing Conflicts of Interest.
Arrangements for securing the
involvement of persons who are, or may
be, provided with services commissioned
by the Group in certain aspects of those
commissioning arrangements and the
principles that underpin these.

Our Constitution is a living document and will
be updated to reflect changes in national
guidance and in our Membership and
composition and submitted in line with NHS
England guidance and following consultation
and sign up by our Membership. We have
ensured that our Constitution continues to
correlate with our Detailed Financial
Procedures.
Our Governing Body and Committee structure
is shown in the diagram below:

NHS Leeds South and East Clinical Commissioning Group

Council of Members
Our Council of Members is a membership
body, consisting of representatives from each
of the 42 member practices in Leeds South
and East and is led by the GP Non-Executive
Directors.
In September 2015 the Membership approved
formal Terms of Reference for the Council of
Members Meeting.
The Council of Members Meeting is
responsible for approving the CCG’s
Constitution and proposed changes to the
Constitution including the overarching
Scheme of Delegation, Standing Orders, Prime
Financial Policies and the composition and
arrangements for the Governing Body. Other
responsibilities include:
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Agreeing the vision and values of the CCG
Approving the arrangements for:
Identifying practice members to represent
practices in matters concerning the work
of our CCG and appointing clinical leaders
to represent the CCG membership on the
CCG Governing Body, for example through
election.
Holding the Governing Body to account
for decisions made in delivering agreed
policy objectives and priorities to
members
Enabling the Executive to outline their
views of any key priorities, opportunities
or risks that the CCG faces to Members
Enabling Members to have the
opportunity to share their views of
performance and policy of Governing
Body.

The Council of Members meeting is held twice
a year as a minimum. In addition the GP nonexecutive directors are available at drop in
sessions following the bi-monthly Members’
Clinical Commissioning Meetings.
During 2015/16 meetings were held on 21st
October 2015 and 16 March 2016.
Membership of the Council of Members
meeting is as follows:

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42

Practice Name
Arthington Medical Centre
Ashfield Medical Centre
Ashton View Medical Centre
Austhorpe View Surgery
Beeston Village Surgery
Bellbrooke Surgery
Church Street Surgery
City View Medical Practice
Colton Mill Medical Centre
Conway Medical Centre
Cottingley Surgery
East Park Medical Centre
Garforth Medical Centre
Gibson Lane Practice
Grange Medicare – Middleton Park
Grange Medicare – New Cross Surgery
Grange Medicare – Swillington Health Practice
Harehills Corner Surgery
Hunslet Health Centre
Kippax Hall Surgery
Leeds City Medical Practice
Lincoln Green Medical Centre
Lingwell Croft Surgery
Lofthouse Surgery
Manston Surgery
Moorfield House Surgery
Nova Scotia Medical Centre
Oakley Medical Practice
Oulton Medical Practice
Park Edge Practice
Primary Health Care for the Homeless
Radshan Medical Centre
Shaftesbury Medical Centre
Shafton Lane Medical Centre
Shakespeare Medical Practice
The Garden Surgery
The Medical Centre
The Roundhay Road Surgery
The Whitfield Practice
Whinmoor Surgery
Windmill Health Centre
York Road Surgery
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The Governing Body
Meetings of the Governing Body are held in
public - other than for business deemed to be
confidential. Arrangements accord with the
public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act
1960. The Governing Body meets in public on
a bi-monthly basis. In addition further
workshops are also held regularly. The
Governing Body has overall responsibility for
ensuring that appropriate arrangements are
in place to exercise its functions effectively,
efficiently and economically and in
accordance with the group’s principles of
good governance. Its full responsibilities are
set out in our Constitution.
The work of each CCG committee is directed
by the functions delegated to it by the
Governing Body through the Terms of
Reference.
The following areas of business have been
reviewed and discussed at meetings during
the year:
















Patient Stories
Clinical Chief Officer’s Updates
Patient Engagement
Quality
Finance
Performance
Commissioning
Better Care Fund
Delegated Primary Care Commissioning
Operational Planning
Strategy and Policies
Governing Body Assurance Framework
Corporate Risks
Governance and Constitution
Conflicts of Interest
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To ensure effective and timely information
flows between the Governing Body and its
committees, the chair of each committee
presents a written summary of the meeting at
the subsequent Governing Body meeting.
During 2015/16 the Governing Body has met
in public on eight occasions (two of these
being extra-ordinary meetings).
Governing Body member name and role
Philip Lewer, Lay Chair
Andrew Harris , Clinical Chief Officer
Alistair Walling , GP Non-Executive Director
(Resigned 23 July 2015)
Tom Gibbs , GP Non-Executive Director
(Resigned 23 July 2015)
Ben Browning , GP Non-Executive Director
Helen Haywood, GP Non-Executive Director
(From 1 January 2016)
Arshad Rafique, GP Non-Executive Director
(From 1 January 2016)
Amal Paul, GP Non-Executive Director (from 1
Jan 2016)
Brian Roebuck, Lay Member-Audit and
Governance
Gordon Tollefson, Lay Member – PPI
Mark Bradley, Chief Finance Officer
Matthew Ward, Chief Operating Officer
Dave Mitchell, Medical Director
Ellie Monkhouse, Director of Nursing and
Quality (resigned from Governing Body 26
Nov 2015)
Rod Robertson , Secondary Care Consultant
Victoria Eaton, Public Health Consultant
Maureen Kelly, Acting Director of Nursing and
Corporate Affairs (From 29 Feb 2016)

Attendance
8/8
7/8
1/1
1/1
7/8
3/8
2/8
2/8
7/8
8/8
8/8
8/8
7/8
1/5

6/8
7/8
1/1

The Governing Body Meeting on the 23 July
2015 recommended to the Membership that
an additional GP Non-Executive Director be
added to the establishment of the Governing
Body,(making a total of four) to be filled by a
Nomination/Election process of eligible GPs.
The Assistant Director of Nursing and Quality
(Maureen Kelly) was invited as a standing
non-voting attendee to the Governing Body
meetings from 26 November 2015 until 28
February 2016 . From 29 February 2016,
Maureen Kelly has been acting up into the
role of Director of Nursing and Corporate
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Affairs and as such has become a voting
member of the Governing Body.
The Director of Adult Social Services (Cath
Roff) at Leeds City Council was invited as a
standing non-voting attendee to the
Governing Body meetings from January 2016.

GP Conflicts Committee
The GP Conflicts Committee is a Committee of
the Governing Body. The Committee’s role is
to make decisions on issues which affect GPs,
in their capacity as providers, and which
would otherwise raise conflict of interest
issues for all GP Members undertaking
employment or providing clinical advice to the
CCG. The Lay Chair of the Governing Body is
the chair of the GP Conflicts Committee. The
membership consists of all those members of
the Governing Body who are not GPs. The GP
Conflicts Committee met twice during the
year:
GP Conflicts Committee Members:
Philip Lewer
Lay Chair

Attendance

Brian Roebuck
Lay Member-Governance

2/2

Gordon Tollefson
Lay Member – PPI

2/2

Mark Bradley
Chief Finance Officer

2/2

Matthew Ward
Chief Operating Officer

1/2

Ellie Monkhouse
Director of Nursing and Quality (resigned as
of 26 Nov 2015)

0/2

Rod Robertson
Secondary Care Consultant

2/2

Victoria Eaton
Public Health Consultant

1/2

Maureen Kelly
Acting Director of Nursing, Quality and
Corporate Affairs (From 29 Feb 2016)

0/1

Audit and Governance Committee
The role of the Audit and Governance
Committee is to provide the Governing Body
with an independent and objective view of
our financial systems, financial information
and compliance with laws, regulations and
directions directing the CCG in so far as they
relate to finance. In addition, the Governing
Body has delegated scrutiny of the following
functions to the Audit and Governance
Committee:







Audit (Internal and External)
Counter Fraud
Integrated Governance, Risk Management
and Internal Control
Information Governance
Health and Safety, including fire safety
Information Governance

The Committee is authorised by the
Governing Body to approve CCG policies
which fall within its remit.

2/2

The Audit and Governance Committee have
agreed and monitored the implementation of
the Internal Audit Programme of Work. In
addition the Local Counter Fraud Specialist
has made regular reports to the Committee.
The Committee has focused on risk
management with regular reviews of the
Governing Body Assurance Framework and
the Corporate Risk Register.
Information Governance and the approval
related Policies is an important feature of the
Committees work.
The Committee receives quarterly reports in
respect of Health and Safety, this includes the
review and approval of associated policies and
risk assessments.
The Management of Conflicts of Interest and
Gifts and Hospitality is a key issue for the CCG
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and the Committee has reviewed the
Registers during the year. A new ‘Standards of
Business Policy’ was approved during the year
The Committee keeps an overview of the
activity of the other Committees by receiving
the Chair’s reports from these Committees
and has reviewed the annual reports and selfassessment of the Committees on behalf of
the Governing Body.
The Audit and Governance Committee has
met on eight occasions (one of which was an
Extra-ordinary meeting) during 2015/16:
Audit and Governance Committee Members:
Brian Roebuck
Lay Member-Governance
Gordon TollefsonL
Lay Member – PPI
Ben Browning
GP Non-Executive Director
Arshad Rafique
GP Non-Executive Director (From 1 January
2016)

Attended:
8/8
8/8
7/8

1/2

Remuneration and Nomination
Committee
The Remuneration Committee became the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee
from May 2015 with the Nomination SubCommittee being disbanded as part of this
change.
The Committee makes recommendations to
the Governing Body in relation to:
 Remuneration, fees and other allowances
for employees and for people who
provide services to the CCG, and any
determinations about allowances under
any pension scheme; and
 Nomination: ensuring the balance of skills,
experience and knowledge of the
Governing Body, undertaking succession
planning, overseeing the appointment
process for Governing Body Members and
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setting the terms of office for these
members.
The Remuneration and Nomination
Committee is chaired by our lay chair. All
members are selected from the Governing
Body membership.
The Governing Body, in appointing members
of the committee, ensures the highest level of
independence, consistent with the principle
that no member of the committee is involved
in recommending their own remuneration or
terms of appointment.
The Remuneration and Nomination
Committee met on four occasions during
2015/16:
Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Core Members

Attendance

Philip Lewer
Lay Chair
Gordon Tollefson
Lay Member PPI
Brian Roebuck
Lay Member Governance
Additional Members required for specific
matters outlined above
Andrew Harris
Clinical Chief Officer
Alistair Walling
GP Non-Executive Director (Resigned 23 July
2015)
Tom Gibbs
GP Non-Executive Director (Resigned 23 July
2015
Additional Members when considering
Nomination matters
Andrew Harris
Clinical Chief Officer
Ben Browning
GP Non-Executive Director

4/4
4/4
4/4

1/1
1/1

1/1

2/2
0/2

Quality Committee
The Quality Committee, provides assurance to
the Governing Body that the services
commissioned on behalf of the CCG are of
high quality, are safe and that evidence from
quality improvement processes drives the
quality improvement agenda across the Leeds
Healthcare Economy. The remit of the
Committee reflects the three elements of
quality:
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Safety
Effectiveness
Patient experience

The Chair of the Committee is the Secondary
Care Consultant. The Quality Committee has
met on six occasions.

Quality Committee Members:

Attendance

Rod Robertson
Secondary Care Consultant

7/7

Tom Gibbs
GP Non-Executive Director (Resigned 23 July
2015)

1/3

Amal Paul
GP Non-Executive Director (From 1 January
2016)

1/1

Andrew Harris
Clinical Chief Officer

3/7

Ellie Monkhouse
Director of Nursing and Quality (Resigned 1
November 2015)

2/4

Matt Ward
Chief Operating Officer

3/7

Dave Mitchell
Medical Director

6/7

Maureen Kelly
Acting Director of Nursing, Quality and
Corporate Affairs (From 1 November 2015)

2/3

The Committee is authorised by the
Governing Body to approve CCG policies
within its remit.
The Quality Committee have reviewed on a
regular basis a core set of quality measures,
however changes to the reporting processes
and new additions to the work plan have
resulted in an expanded range of reports
being considered.
Overall the monitoring of reports from
Providers has shown encouraging quality care
for our patients.
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An Annual Safeguarding report has been
presented to a Governing Body Workshop and
regular reports and relevant committee
meeting minutes are available to the Quality
committee.
Primary care quality matters are reported to
the Quality committee for review.

Finance, Activity and Performance
Committee
The Finance, Activity and Performance
Committee supports the Governing Body in
tracking delivery of key financial and service
priorities, outcomes and targets as specified
in the CCG’s strategic and operational plans.
The Committee undertakes an important role
in providing scrutiny and challenge. The
Committee provides a performance
framework which proactively manages the
CCG’s financial, performance and QIPP
(Quality, Innovation, Productivity and
Prevention) agenda and provides assurance in
delivery of all of these areas to the Governing
Body.
The Finance, Activity and Performance
Committee is chaired by a non-executive
member of the Governing Body.
The Committee is authorised by the
Governing Body to approve CCG policies
within its remit.
The Committee received an update on the
financial performance of the CCG at every
meeting detailing the financial position of the
CCG. This includes running costs, allocations
and its performance against key indicators
throughout the year. The financial plan for
2016/17 was discussed and support was given
by the Committee for the plan for
development funds and long term investment
to deliver the transformative changes
required in the health service.
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Over the year the Committee has reviewed
and approved changes to a number of HR
policies. It has reviewed the results of the
Staff Survey and receives the quarterly and
annual Workforce Reports.
The integrated performance report was
reviewed regularly throughout the year. A
major innovation has been the introduction of
Statistical Process Control Charts, which has
significantly added to understanding and
appreciation of contextual trends. The QIPP
programme was reviewed regularly including
progress against this and the plan for
developing programmes for future years. The
Corporate Risk Register and Governing Body
Assurance Framework are both reviewed at
every meeting of the Committee in regards to
the individual risks allocated to it. The
Committee also received assurance on the
delivery of Strategic Aims 4 and 5.
The Finance, Activity and Performance
Committee met on five occasions and the
attendance of the Members was as follows:
Finance, Activity and Performance
Committee Members:

Attendance:

Alistair Walling
GP Non-Executive Director (Resigned 23 July
2015)

1/2

Brian Roebuck
Lay Member-Governance

6/6

Mark Bradley
Chief Finance Officer

6/6

Matthew Ward
Chief Operating Officer

5/6

Dave Mitchell
Medical Director

6/6

The PAG, which is accountable to the
Governing Body, makes recommendations to
the Governing Body upon matters affecting
patients and process in terms of engagement
procedures for commissioning or
decommissioning of services, and evaluation
and review of existing services within the
remit of the CCG.
Patient Assurance Group Members
Gordon Tollefson, Governing Body Lay
Member
Member – Barwick-in-Elmet
David Tompkins
Member – Whinmoor/Cross Gates
Bill Butcher
Member – Seacroft
Ed Whalley
Member – Beeston and Holbeck
Dickson Acheampong
Member – Rothwell
Craig Townsend
Member – Gipton/Harehills
Jon Danks
Member – Kippax/Methley
Roy Wilson
Member – Garforth & Swillington
Kenneth Watson
Member - Hunslet
Phil Gleeson
Member – Middleton/Belle Isle
Emma Stewart
Healthwatch
Moneer Sharif
Matthew Ward, Chief Officer
Victoria Eaton, Public Health Consultant
LInsay Medica, Member
Tanya Matilainen, Healthwatch Leeds
Lesley Sterling-Baxter, Healthwatch Leeds

The Chair of the PAG is the Lay Member of the
Governing Body leading on patient and public
engagement.
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6/6
5/6
2/2
6/6
1/2
2/2
2/2
2/1
2/2
2/2
2/2
1/2
3/6
3/3
2/6
2/4
1/1

During the year a review of the PAG was
undertaken to ensure that it continued to
provide robust assurance to the Governing
Body in respect of its remit. The following key
changes to the existing structure were
implemented:
●

Patient Assurance Group (PAG)

Attendance

Changes to the Membership of the Group
including three patient representatives
and a representative from Healthwatch,
to ensure that the patient continues to be

NHS Leeds South and East Clinical Commissioning Group

●
●

at the heart of the CCGs commissioning
decisions;
Increased participation from CCG
commissioners;
Confirmed oversight of the following
workstreams within Strategic Aim 3:
○ To achieve effective participation
of the public in the commissioning
process so that services provided
reflect the needs of local people
○ To ensure that patient, carer and
public experience are at the
centre of the commissioning
process and a key drive and
influence in improving services
(shared with Quality Committee).

The PAG has links and provides input to, a
network of patients, members of the public,
and carers, comprising a Patient Engagement
Network (PEN) and Neighbourhood Leader
Group (NLG).
The MyNHS MyVoice database provides a
number of patient and public representatives
who can be contacted with information about
any engagement activity, or events that may
be of interest.
The Statement of Involvement provides an
overview of the engagement activities that
have taken place over the past year and
includes a summary of what people told the
PAG and what we did on hearing those views.

assessment. The Governing Body has also
committed itself to a Development
Programme to provide at both individual and
Governing Body level the identified training
and development to ensure increased
effectiveness.
There is now an increased focus on quality
and the assurance of this. There is a dedicated
Committee focusing on Quality. The voice of
the patient is reflected through the
commissioning process and the work of the
Patient Assurance Group; the Governing Body
also views a Patient Video at each meeting,
which portrays a difficult issue to be
addressed.
The Terms of Reference for the Committees
are clear and each Committee has a Work
Programme linked to the Terms of Reference
and aligned Strategic Aims and Statutory
Duties. The Committees review these on an
annual basis. The new Committee structure
was felt overall to be providing effective
assurance on the delivery of the CCG’s
statutory duties. Overall the new procedures
for providing assurance on the delivery of the
strategic aims was thought to be effective
The arrangements for the reporting and
review of risks was felt to be effective at both
Governing Body and Committee level.

Performance and Assessment of
effectiveness of Governing Body

The Audit and Governance Committee in their
Annual Report to the Governing Body
concluded that it was clear that the
governance arrangements had been
enhanced, the risk profile of the organisation
had been reduced, and the organisation’s
overall financial strength had been
maintained.

The Governing Body has completed the
Institute of Good Governance Maturity Matrix
and issues raised from this will be addressed
together with areas for improvement that
have been identified from the self-

An independent view of the effectiveness of
the Governing Body and Committee Structure
has been provided by the work of Internal
Audit who have made some
recommendations as to how the Committees

The PAG took a lead in ensuring patient
engagement at our Annual General Meeting.
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could operate even more effectively in the
future. The CCG will be implementing the
recommendations during 2016.

City-wide Governance arrangements
NHS Leeds South and East CCG operates
within the wider Leeds health and social care
system. We play an active part in ensuring
these city wide relationships and governance
arrangements are robust and effective. Below
are the main governance arrangements for
city wide collaborative working.

To do this, the strategy identified a range of
priorities to be addressed by all health and
care partners in the city, and during 2015/16
we continued in working with some of these
partners which included the Local Authority
through the Health and Wellbeing Board
(HWB), and the Leeds Transformation Board.
Our joint plans aimed to address, contribute
and deliver those priority areas of the JHWBS,
in delivering accessible, integrated health and
wellbeing services that are safe and effective
for the population of Leeds, where plans
included:


Leeds Health and Wellbeing Board
The primary purpose of the Leeds Health and
Wellbeing Board is to provide overall strategic
leadership to improve the health and
wellbeing of residents in the city. Local
authorities are required to establish Health
and Wellbeing Boards under the Health and
Social Care Act 2012. This Board has
responsibility for driving health improvements
for residents and a much stronger role in
shaping local services. Membership of the
board includes representation from Leeds City
Council (including Council Members and
Executive Directors) and the three CCGs in
Leeds (we are represented by the Clinical
Chief Officer and Chief Operating Officer),
Healthwatch and the third sector are also
represented.

Aligning our plans to the Joint Leeds
Health and Wellbeing Strategy
The Leeds Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy
(JHWBS)’s vision is that Leeds will be:
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A healthy and caring city for all ages;
Where people who are the poorest will
improve their health the fastest.












Promoting the NHS Health Check, helping
people to reduce and manage their risk of
heart disease, stroke, kidney disease and
diabetes;
Providing a range of services that support
people to adopt healthy lifestyles;
Continuing to move towards increased
integration of health and social care
services;
Increasing access to a range of community
mental health services e.g. Improving
Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT);
Developing screening services and
working with primary care to encourage
greater uptake to support early detection
of cancer;
Developing a range of partnerships with
the Third Sector that support
communities to improve their wellbeing
e.g. services that reduce social isolation;
provide opportunities for volunteering;
act as a “gateway” to advice, information,
and services; and promote health and
wellbeing; and
Securing capacity across a range of acute
and community services that ensures that
the South and East Leeds population
receive timely diagnosis and treatment,
ensuring that if people do get ill, that they
have the best chance of recovery.
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There is a new JHWBS being developed for
2016/17-2020/21, which will set out a new
five-year vision for the city and population of
Leeds. Building on many of the priorities of
the last Strategy, our plans for 2016/17
onwards have been developed with the
Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB), with this
in mind, and we will continue to support both
the existing and emerging priorities outlined
in the new Strategy.
We consult regularly on a formal and informal
basis with the HWB, its membership and its
Chair. In particular, we consult with the HWB
on our strategies and plans, and how these
contribute to the delivery of the health and
wellbeing strategy for Leeds. For example, in
preparation for the submission of plans for
16/17 we have provided a full analysis of how
our plans and priorities meet the refreshed
health and wellbeing strategy for 2016-21.
While there is no formal requirement to
consult on the production of the annual
report, we can demonstrate that the content
of our annual report has the support of the
HWB.

Leeds Integrated Commissioning
Executive (ICE)
Leeds ICE is the Executive arm of the Leeds
Health and Wellbeing Board. This is a
Committee in Common with Leeds City
Council and NHS England (in relation to its
direct commissioning responsibilities). Leeds
ICE has oversight of the joint health and social
care commissioning agenda in the city and has
responsibility for negotiating opportunities for
integrated commissioning of Health and social
care services in Leeds. LSE CCG are
represented by the Clinical Chief Officer and
the Chief Operating Officer, with the Chief
Finance Officer in attendance
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Leeds CCG Network
We have entered into joint arrangements with
NHS Leeds North Clinical Commissioning
Group and NHS Leeds West Clinical
Commissioning Group via the Leeds CCG
Network. This is not a sub-committee of the
Clinical Commissioning Group but a cross-city
working group. A documented
Memorandum of Understanding is in place
describing the joint commissioning
arrangements within the Leeds health
economy including the sharing of local
commissioning strategies, the identification of
commonalities and the delegation of
contracting responsibilities. We are
represented by the Clinical Chief Officer, Chief
Finance Officer, Chief Operating Officer and
Medical Director.

The Clinical Commissioning Group Risk
Management Framework
We have adopted a risk management strategy
as well as a risk management process for risks.
This aims to:
● Ensure structures and processes are in
place to support the assessment and
management of risk throughout the CCG
and across the three CCG’s in Leeds;
● Achieve a culture that encourages all staff
to identify and control risks which may
adversely affect the operational ability of
the CCG;
● Assure the public, patients and their
carers and representatives, staff and
partner organisations that the CCG is
committed to managing risk
appropriately.
The strategy sets out the process for
identifying, recording, reporting, quantifying,
managing and reviewing risks. Risks identified
from a broad range of sources including
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incidents, complaints, internal audit reports
and reports by external bodies are recorded
on the CCG risk register. Risks that may affect
our ability to meet our strategic objectives are
recorded on the Governing Body Assurance
Framework (GBAF). Our Risk Management
Strategy 2015-17 was reviewed and a revised
version was approved by Governing Body in
September 2015.
The Risk Management Strategy has
documented set levels of risk score that
determine the CCG’s risk appetite, that is,
which risks are managed at the operational
level and those that are escalated to the
Corporate Risk Register for review by the
Governing Body.
Risk management is embedded within the
CCG and into the wider working through a
number of different routes. For example we
operate a city-wide incident reporting system
which facilitates the review of incidents to
identify any as a potential risk to the CCG.
We have two risk management processes in
place as described in the risk management
strategy; the Governing Body Assurance
Framework (GBAF) and the risk register.

Governing Body Assurance Framework
The Governing Body Assurance Framework
(GBAF) sets out how the CCG manages the
principal risks to delivering its strategic
objectives. The CCG Governing Body owns and
determines the content of the GBAF,
identifying the strategic risks to achieving the
CCG’s objectives and monitoring progress
throughout the year.
The Governing Body committees review the
GBAF risks linked to the strategic aim at every
meeting.
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We are compliant with the Secretary of
State’s Directions for counter fraud and the
requirement for the provision for a Local
Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS). The activities
undertaken by the LCFS during the year have
been delivered to ensure that they are riskbased and in-line with the latest thoughtleadership and emerging methodologies,
including the Government’s National Fraud
Strategy and Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) ‘Managing
the Risk of Fraud’ document which are
considered best practice when countering
fraud.

Risk Register
The risk register is a record of all the
significant risks faced by the organisation. It
contains a description of the risk, the risk
owner, the controls in place and any
outstanding actions as well as a risk score. All
identified risks have an executive director risk
owner and an appointed responsible manager
to ensure appropriate accountability for the
management of the risk.
A web-based risk register system, Datix, is in
place, which enables all staff to access and
record risks. Staff have access to a
standardised risk assessment form for the
recording of risks and the Risk Management
Strategy provides a standard risk scoring
matrix for risk owners to use to score the level
of each particular risk to ensure consistency.
All risks that are added to the system are
reviewed and approved by a Director before
appearing on the CCG risk register.
The Strategy documents set levels of risk
score that determine which risks are managed
at an operational level and those that are
escalated to the Corporate Risk Register for
review by the Governing Body.
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The operational risks are managed within
directorates with support from the city wide
governance team. When risks increase in
score, red 15 or above, these are escalated to
the corporate risk register. The risks are
reviewed and updated on a regular cycle with
risk owners and the corporate risk register is
presented and reviewed by the CCG
committees and the Governing Body at each
meeting. Responsible managers will utilise
various data streams to regularly assess the
levels of risk they are managing and update
the risks to ensure that an accurate position is
presented.
The Datix risk management system enables
risks to be captured at a local level as well as
city wide. City wide risks are recorded and
reviewed by each CCG prior to acceptance on
the risk register. Where risks vary in impact
and likelihood across the city these are
managed by the specific CCG to ensure it
reflects the local position.
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Risk Assessment
Risk is assessed in accordance with the CCG
Risk Management Strategy 2015-17. This
requires managers to identify risks through
established reporting streams and assess the
likelihood and consequences of the risk
occurring. This is done using the National
Patient Safety Risk measurement matrix
included in the strategy. This ensures a
consistent approach to risk assessment
regardless of the individual performing it. The
likelihood and consequence matrix reflects
the organisation’s agreed risk levels and those
at which escalation to senior managers and
directors is required.
A summary of our 2015/16 Corporate Risks, as
at 31 March 2016, are summarised overleaf:
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Risk ID
541

Risk Title

Risk Score

Robust delivery of the health and social care system within Leeds

15

The CCG Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF) 2015/16 describes the CCG’s principal risks
to achieving its objectives. A summary of the GBAF can be found below:
Summary of Governing Body Assurance Framework risks (31 March 2016)
Strategic Objective

Risk title

To improve the health of
the whole population and
reduce inequalities in our
communities

Resources are not targeted
effectively to areas of most need
leading to failure to improve
health in the poorest areas

Assurances

Risk
score

Public Health accountability to Governing Body
PHHCAS MOU, annual plan documents and minutes of
review meetings reported to Governing Body
Strategic Aim 1 Steering Group minutes to EMT
Strategic aim 1 assurance reports presented to CCG
committees
12
Public health reports, minutes and strategy document
from Leeds Health and Well Being Board presented and
reviewed by CCG
Attendance at the local Neighbourhood Improvement
Boards (NIB) and locality meetings and forums

To secure continuous
improvement in the
quality and safety of all
services commissioned for
our population

The CCG fails to deliver quality
standards resulting in poor
quality and unsafe care

Minutes of Quality PMG meetings and their quality
committee minutes reported through the Quality
Committees
Quality Surveillance Group minutes reported to the
Quality Committee
Provider quality report presented to Governing Body bimonthly – highlighting key quality issues
Patient experience surveys monitored and evaluated
12 month rolling programme – scheduled quality visits of
services to monitor quality issues and staffing levels
12
Reports received detailing performance on agreed quality
measures via quality performance, contracting meetings
and reported through Provider Quality meeting into the
Quality Committee
Monthly quality reporting via IQPR
Internal audit report on contract and provider
management
CQUIN performance reports

To ensure that public,
patient and carer voices
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Ineffective patient and public
engagement results in

Communication Education Equality and Diversity (CEED)
Strategy is presented to Governing Body, PAG and Quality
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are at the centre of our
healthcare services, from
planning to delivery

commissioning decisions that do
not reflect the local population

Committee
Patient Assurance Group (PAG) meeting report and
minutes received at every Governing Body
Consultation/engagement documentation reviewed

8

Evaluation of patient engagement activities
Annual involvement statement produced in public CCG
Governing Body
Equality and Diversity (E&D) impact assessments
Internal audit reports on stakeholder engagement
Patient feedback reports including PALS and complaints
data
Quality committee monitors patient experience and
reports to Governing Body
To deliver continuous
improvement in health
and social care systems
within available resources

The CCG may breach its financial
duties in relation to CCG
commissioning and running cost
responsibilities

Financial position reported to Finance & Performance
Committee, Executive Management Team, Governing
Body and Audit Committee; variances reported/discussed
and necessary action agreed
Budget Holders identified, reports discussed regularly
with appropriate Finance Managers, variance discussed
and action formulated as necessary
QIPP Tracker monitored through the Finance Activity and
Performance Committee
QIPP plans and impact analysis monitored by contract
management boards
LCH TDA support plan reviewed by COO and CFO
quarterly

10

Integrated performance report presented to the
governing body and committees
Monthly contract information received from lead
commissioners and CSU
Complexities of the multiprovider environment and
resource availability may inhibit
new models of care

Leeds Network Terms of Reference in place – Project
Management Office (PMO), Contract Board, ICE,
Transformation Board
Process for mapping Leeds Network arrangements ongoing
Contracts signed
Provider Management Group (PMG) minutes/Terms of
Reference (ToR)

12

Public Health MoU
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Internal audit reviews and Internal audit plan
Mapping process has been completed to include West
Yorkshire footprint
To develop and maintain a
healthy organisation to
underpin the effective
delivery of our strategy

lack of member engagement and
primary care capacity will impact
on the delivery of the CCG
strategy

Plan delivery assurance process
Workforce and OD plan reports to Finance Activity
Performance Committee
No gaps in GP leadership - appraisal process place
review of CCF & Council of members on audit plan
In work programme of Transformation Board Primary
Care Enabling Group
Primary care report

12

Primary care quality report presented to CCG Quality
Committee
Primary care engagement report presented to governing
body, 10CCF and EMT
Quality measures included and reported against as part of
the CCG’s bi-monthly Integrated Performance Report
(IPR) and presented to Governing body, EMT and FAPC

MOT monitoring
Review of primary care indicators via use of the primary
care assurance table at the area team assurance meetings
Monitoring dashboards to assure of progress against key
CCG quality performance markers

The above risks are the strategic risks to CCG which are captured within the Governing Body
Assurance Framework and the high scoring red risks held on the CCG risk register. The risks are
presented to each CCG committee for review and assurance, and then reported to the Governing
Body in the public meeting. The GBAF and risk register can be found within the papers published on
the CCG website for the public to review.
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The Clinical Commissioning Group
Internal Control Framework

identified problems are appropriately
recorded on the risk register.

A system of internal control is the set of
processes and procedures in place to ensure
we deliver our policies, aims and objectives. It
is designed to identify and prioritise the risks,
to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically.

For 2015 Governing Body Committees have
discussed risks on their Committee agenda
that relate to their portfolio or work and
report to the Governing Body of their findings.

The system of internal control allows risk to
be managed to a reasonable level rather than
eliminating all risk; it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness.
We have assigned both internal and external
auditors to provide the Governing Body with
independent assurance of its process of
internal control and to assure itself of the
validity of this Governance Statement.
Throughout the year a series of audits have
been undertaken to review the effectiveness
of governance systems. The reports from
these audits are submitted to the Audit and
Governance Committee. All audit reports
contain action plans of work required as a
result of the review findings. All actions are
assigned to a senior manager with
responsibility to complete within the
designated timescales. Managers are held to
account by the Audit and Governance
Committee for completion of all actions.
The Governing Body Assurance Framework
and the Corporate Risk Register are standing
agenda items on the Governing Body and
Audit and Governance Committee agendas.
This allows the CCG Governing Body members
to cross-check current identified risks with
any other significant developments that may
arise on these agendas to ensure any
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The Committees will consider where gaps in
control and gaps in assurance are identified
and what actions are required to mitigate the
gaps. The Committee will request ‘deep
dives’ into risks on their agenda to allow for
further scrutiny of assurances, mitigation,
actions and progress.
The CCG seeks assurance from other areas
about some of the services it receives. The
Yorkshire and Humber Commissioning
Support Unit, provides commissioning support
services to the CCG, the service auditor report
received for Yorkshire and Humber
Commissioning Support Unit provides
assurance that it is operating effectively.
During 2014/15 the Yorkshire and Humber
Commissioning Support organisation was
unsuccessful in its bid to be on the Lead
Provider Framework, and as a result would no
longer be able to provide commissioning
support from April 2016.
We went out to joint procurement led by NHS
England with the Yorkshire and Humber CCGs
during 2015/16 to appoint a single provider
for Commissioning Support Services. The
procurement process has been completed
with a contract awarded which will
commence on 1 April 2016.
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust provides
payroll services to the CCG. The most recent
controls assurance report relating to the
payroll service received on (to be confirmed 2015/16 report to be received in April 2016)
confirmed that the overall, the Payroll
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function, including Pensions, was found to be
operating within a well-defined and effective
control environment and payments were
judged to be appropriate and bona fide. The
Auditors’ determined that “full assurance”
could be given with regard to the operation of
Payroll processing controls.

Information Governance
The NHS Information Governance Framework
sets the processes and procedures by which
the NHS handles information about patients
and employees, in particular personal
identifiable information. The NHS
Information Governance Framework is
supported by an information governance
toolkit and the annual submission process
provides assurances to the clinical
commissioning group, other organisations and
to individuals that personal information is
dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and
effectively.
We place high importance on ensuring there
are robust information governance systems
and processes in place to help protect patient
and corporate information. We have
established an information governance
management framework and are developing
information governance processes and
procedures in line with the information
governance toolkit. We reviewed our
overarching Information Governance
Strategic, Vision and Policy Framework this
year and enhanced staff awareness. We have
ensured all staff undertake annual
information governance training and have
implemented a staff information governance
handbook to ensure staff are aware of their
information governance roles and
responsibilities.
The CCG has a suite of approved Information
Governance policies and has provided the
associated staff awareness. It has also
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reviewed the service specification with its IT
supplier which has included additional
assurances around data security, and more
recently assurances around Cyber security.
The CCG continues to use a specialist data
centre to process any person identifiable data.
The CCG undertook an assessment of its IG
arrangements through completion of the
Information Governance Toolkit (IGT). This
included a review of key factors via our
internal auditors. The CCG reached the
required level in all the requirements. The
CCG will be renewing approvals to continue to
be an Accredited Safe Haven (ASH). This will
mean the CCG is approved to provide a safe
environment for the processing of
information containing NHS numbers.
The CCG has a governing body-level officer
responsible for information security and the
associated management processes, and this
role is known as the Senior Information Risk
Owner (SIRO). The CCG has a governing bodylevel clinician responsible for ensuring that all
flows of patient information are justified and
secure, and this role is known as the Caldicott
Guardian. IG training is mandatory for all staff,
to ensure that staff are aware of their
information governance roles and
responsibilities. Overall compliance remains
above the required target level.
There are processes in place for incident
reporting and investigation of serious
incidents. We are developing information risk
assessment and management procedures and
a programme will be established to fully
embed an information risk culture throughout
the organisation against identified risks.
There is an Information Governance
Committee which reports to the Audit and
Governance Committee. These are formal
meetings with associated minutes and action
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tracking. The CCG continued to buy expert IG
practitioner and advisory service from the
Yorkshire and Humber Commissioning
Support Unit. From 1 April 2016 this
arrangement is replaced by a new contractual
arrangement with eMBED Health Consortium.
Any breaches of security are managed within
the CCG risk management policy and reported
using the Datix risk management system; no
breaches have been reported during 2015/16.

Review of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness of the use of resources
The Governing Body has overarching
responsibility for ensuring that there are
appropriate arrangements in place to exercise
its functions effectively, efficiently and
economically.
The CCG has developed and continues to
refine systems and processes to effectively
manage financial risks and to secure a stable
financial position.
The Financial Plan was developed for
2015/16, and budgets set within this Plan, and
signed off by the Governing Body prior to the
start of the financial year.
These budgets were communicated to
managers and budget holders within the
organisation. The Chief Finance Officer and his
team have worked closely with managers to
ensure robust annual budgets were prepared
and delivered.
In 2015/16 the CCG planned delivery of all
financial targets including QIPP of £9.3m and
a planned 2% surplus and a further £2m in
November when the Governing Body
approved an agreement with NHS England to
increase its surplus in exchange for the
guaranteed return of this £2m in 2016/17.
The increase in surplus was possible due to
slippage against some investment schemes
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into next year and has helped the wider NHS
financial position.
Finance reports are presented to Executive
Management Team meetings, each Governing
Body meeting and the CCG’s Finance, Activity
and Performance Committee. In addition a
summary version is presented to each
meeting of the Audit and Governance
Committee. Alongside the financial position,
performance against statutory duties, risks
and actions to mitigate risks are reported and
discussed.
The CCG makes full use of internal audit
functions to ensure controls are operating
effectively and to advise on areas for
improvement. Audit reports, action plans and
implementation are discussed in detail at
meetings of the Audit and Governance
Committee.
The CCG’s Annual Accounts are reviewed by
the Audit and Governance Committee.
The CCG’s future plans reflect the anticipated
lower levels of growth and transfer of
resource to the Local Authority, as part of The
Better Care Fund. The CCG is actively engaged
in discussions in this regard to ensure
resources are prioritised in line with its
strategic direction.
We also recognise the need to achieve cost
reductions through improved efficiency and
productivity and work is ongoing to develop
schemes to achieve the QIPP targets which
form part of future financial plans.

Feedback from delegation chains
regarding business, use of resources and
responses to risk
This currently does not apply to the CCG as it
does not have delegated decision making on
any aspect of its expenditure. The CCG does
have a risk pooling arrangement in place with
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Leeds City Council where governance
processes have been clearly outlined in a
formal agreement and control of resources
remains with the three CCGs in Leeds who
make recommendations in partnership with
Leeds City Council to the Health and
Wellbeing Board for ratification.

Review of the effectiveness of
Governance, Risk Management and
Internal Control
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for
reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control within the Clinical
Commissioning Group.

Capacity to Handle Risk
We take the management of risk seriously and
the Governing Body, Executive Directors,
managers and staff work together to provide
an integrated approach to the management of
risk and in developing a culture of reporting
risk, understanding and challenging risk and
providing opportunities for the analysis of risk
and discussions on risk across the whole
organisation.
We have appointed an executive Director lead
for risk management who reports to the
Governing Body on the risk management
process. The Chief Finance Officer was the
Executive Director lead for Governance until
February 2016, when this became the
responsibility of the Chief Operating Officer.
The Chief Finance Officer retains the SIRO
responsibility.
Risk Management is a key task of the Audit
and Governance Committee which is chaired
by a Lay Member of the Governing Body.
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The Citywide Governance Team is responsible
for a training programme across the
organisation to provide staff with support on
the writing of risks, the culture of risk
reporting, and an understanding of why risk is
a key element of internal control for the
organisation. The team works with Directors,
senior managers and staff, both individually
and collectively, to discuss, advise and
facilitate progress on the Risk Management
Strategy.

Review of Effectiveness
My review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control is informed by the work of
the internal auditors and the executive
managers and clinical leads within the Clinical
Commissioning Group who have responsibility
for the development and maintenance of the
internal control framework. I have drawn on
performance information available to me. My
review is also informed by comments made by
the external auditors in their management
letter and other reports.
Our Governing Body Assurance Framework
provides me with evidence that the
effectiveness of controls that manage the
risks to the Clinical Commissioning Group in
achieving its principles objectives have been
reviewed.
I have been advised on the implications of the
result of my review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control by the Governing
Body, the Audit and Governance Committee
and the other Committees and a plan to
address any weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in
place.
The formal process for maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control includes the following:

NHS Leeds South and East Clinical Commissioning Group















52

Governing Body keeps under review the
systems of internal control through
reports in relation to risk management
and the Governing Body Assurance
Framework. Regular reports are also
received in respect of performance,
contracting, finance and quality and
assurance from the Committees in respect
of the responsibilities they oversee;
The Audit and Governance Committee
has oversight of the CCG’s financial
systems, financial information, risk
management, audit, information
governance and corporate governance;
At a Committee level the Finance, Activity
and Performance and Quality
Committees take responsibility for
keeping under review the governance
arrangements relating to finance,
contracting, performance and clinical
governance;
The Patient Assurance Group provide
assurance to the Governing Body in
respect of patient and Public engagement
responsibilities;
Internal Auditors, including counter fraud
provide further assurance through the
delivery of their Annual Work Plan and
providing assurance as well as
recommendations on different aspects
within the system of internal control;
Self-assessment of the Committee
governance arrangements undertaken on
an annual basis provides assurance on the
effectiveness of the Committees in
carrying out their responsibilities;
Third Party Assurance. Alongside the
Head of Internal Audit Opinion and the
Annual Report, the CCG considers the
assurance statements received from other
service providers such as the NHS Shared
Business Services and Yorkshire and
Humber Commissioning Support (CSU).

During the year no significant internal control
issues were raised.
We promote good governance and proper
stewardship of public resources in pursuance
of its goals and in meeting its statutory duties.
At all times the principles of good governance
are applied to the conduct of business.
Our Constitution; Standing Orders; Prime
Financial Policies and Scheme of Reservation
and Delegation set out the governance
principles, structures and procedures to
effectively maintain the system of internal
control and demonstrate transparency and
accountability.
The Governing Body has an Annual Work
Programme to ensure the delivery of the
CCG’s Strategic Aims.
In addition each Committee is responsible for
providing the Governing Body with assurance
in relation to its remit, which includes:




Delivery in relation to the Strategic Aims
of the CCG;
Delivery of the Statutory Duties of the
CCG;
Scrutiny of the Governing Body Assurance
Framework and Corporate Risk Register.

The Chairs of each Committee provide a
written summary report to the Governing
Body following each Committee, which
provides assurance on the matters that each
Committee is responsible for in its Terms of
Reference and Work Programme.
The role of the Audit and Governance
Committee is to provide the Governing Body
with an independent and objective view of
our financial systems, financial information
and compliance with laws, regulations and
directions directing us in so far as they relate
to finance. The Committee ensures there is
an effective internal audit function that meets
mandatory NHS Internal Audit Standards (or
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other relevant guidance) which provides
appropriate independent assurance to the
Audit and Governance Committee, Clinical
Chief Officer and Governing Body. This is
achieved by: the review and approval of the
Internal Audit Strategy, Operational Plan and
more detailed programme of work, ensuring
that this is consistent with the audit needs of
the organisation, as identified in the
Governing Body Assurance Framework. The
Committee also reviews the work and findings
of the External Auditors.

Head of Internal Audit Opinion
Following completion of the planned audit
work for the financial year for the clinical
commissioning group, the Head of Internal
Audit issued an independent and objective
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the clinical commissioning group’s system of
risk management, governance and internal
control. The Head of Internal Audit concluded
that:
Significant assurance can be given that there
is a generally sound system of internal
control, designed to meet the organisation’s
objectives, and that controls are generally
being applied consistently. However, some
weaknesses in the design and/or inconsistent
application of controls, put the achievement
of particular objectives at risk.
Taking into account the internal audit work
completed to date, all of my findings and the
CCG’s actions to date in response to my
recommendations to date, I believe no areas
of significant risk remain.
During the year, Internal Audit issued the no
audit reports which identified governance,
risk, management and/or control issues which
were significant to the organisation.
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For the full letter, see Appendix 1

Pension Obligations
As an employer with staff entitled to
membership of the NHS Pension Scheme,
control measures are in place to ensure all
employer obligations contained within the
scheme regulations are complied with. This
includes ensuring that deductions from salary,
employer’s contributions and payments into
the scheme are in accordance with the
scheme rules, and that member pension
scheme records are accurately updated in
accordance with the timescales detailed in the
regulations.

Data Quality
See Business Critical Models.

Business Critical Models
A Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) has
been appointed to ensure the Governing Body
that any potential information risks are
identified and mitigated. To enable this, the
SIRO has put in place an information
governance management framework. This
framework includes ensuring that business
critical systems are identified and managed
effectively as recommended in the
Macpherson report. As part of the
management framework, Information Asset
Owners (IAOs) have been appointed that
cover the range of business systems used by
the CCG. The IAOs have been trained. Their
responsibility in relation to Business Critical
systems involves the maintenance of an
information asset register relevant to their
organisational remit, the maintenance of
service continuity plans and the continuity of
key skills to operate such systems. For
example, this would cover the operation and
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use of finance systems such as the Oracle
financials.
The CCG has assessed its predictive business
models along with the associated level of
criticality. Examples are: Risk Stratification,
Activity and Contract plans/forecasts and cash
forecasts. Each business critical area has the
required level of professional and
management input. Data quality is monitored
and there are service level agreements
associated with the external provision of
models such as Risk Stratification. Some
external models such as Office for National
Statistics (ONS) population forecasting are
also classed as business critical, though not
provided internally or via a service level
agreement. The CCG has experience of
robustly challenging the quality and accuracy
of such external models.
The CCG has reviewed the Macpherson report
on government analytical models and has
concluded that is does not currently create
any analytical models that fit the criteria
within that report and hence need to be
notified to the Analytical Oversight
Committee.

Data Security
We have submitted a satisfactory level of
compliance with the information governance
toolkit assessment. The Information
Governance Toolkit submission process
provides assurances to the clinical
commissioning group, other organisations and
to individuals that personal information is
dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and
effectively. This included a review of key
factors via our internal auditors. The CCG
continues be an Accredited Safe Haven (ASH).
This means the CCG provides a safe
environment for the processing of
information containing NHS numbers.
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The CCG has arrangements in place to ensure
data security. The CCG has contractual
arrangements in in place with an accredited IT
provider - the Yorkshire and Humber
Commissioning Support Unit (YHCSU). From 1
April 2016 this arrangement is replaced by
new contractual arrangements with eMbed
Health Consortium and the North East
Commissioning Support Unit (NECS). The
required Data Processing Agreements are in
place. YHSCU provided the IT facilities
required to store the data needed for CCG
business. The CCG does not hold ‘local’ data.
YHCSU were approved by the Health and
Social Care Information Centre [HSCIC] to
process confidential data on the CCGs behalf.
This contract moves to NECS from 1 April
2016. The CCG also uses national IT systems
such as Oracle financials. These are operated
under nationally stipulated security
arrangements. All CCG staff have undertaken
the required IG training to handle data
securely.

Discharge of Statutory Functions
Arrangements put in place by the Clinical
Commissioning Group and explained within
the Corporate Governance Framework were
developed with extensive expert external
legal input, to ensure compliance with the all
relevant legislation. That legal advice also
informed the matters reserved for
Membership Body and Governing Body
decision and the scheme of delegation.
In light of the Harris Review, the Clinical
Commissioning Group has reviewed all of the
statutory duties and powers conferred on it
by the National Health Service Act 2006 (as
amended) and other associated legislative and
regulations. As a result, I can confirm that the
Clinical Commissioning Group is clear about
the legislative requirements associated with
each of the statutory functions for which it is
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responsible, including any restrictions on
delegation of those functions.
Responsibility for each duty and power has
been clearly allocated to a lead Director.
Directorates have confirmed that their
structures provide the necessary capability
and capacity to undertake all of the clinical
commissioning group’s statutory duties.

Conclusion
The Head of Internal Audit Opinion states the
CCG can take "significant assurance" from its
system of internal control and that they do
not consider there are any issues that need to
be flagged as significant internal control
issues.
I am therefore satisfied that the CCG operates
effective and sound systems of internal
control.

Dr Andrew Harris
Clinical Chief Officer/ Accountable Officer
19 May 2016
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6. REMUNERATION
AND STAFF REPORT
Policy on Remuneration of Directors and
Senior Managers

targets of the NHS Leeds South and East CCG’s
Operational Plan. This involves setting and
agreeing objectives on an annual basis.
In delivering performance targets and
personal objectives they will adhere to the
standards of conduct as articulated in the
‘code of conduct for NHS Managers’.

All Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors are appointed by the CCG through
an open recruitment process.

Disclosure of senior managers of a CCG
are paid more than £142,500 per annum

The remuneration and terms of service for the
Lay Chair, Clinical Chief Officer, Chief Finance
Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Medical
Director, Director of Nursing, Quality and
Corporate Affairs, Lay Member for
Governance and Audit, Lay member for
Patient and Public Involvement, Secondary
Care Consultant and the GP Non-Executives
are in line with recommendations by the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

There are two posts within the CCG where the
pro rata salaries are in excess of £142,500,
both post holders are clinical GPs who work
on a part time basis for the CCG on a lower
pro rata rate than the full time equivalent.
The organisation requires their clinical input
and therefore recognises this by paying a
salary commensurate with their earnings in
clinical practice. In setting their remuneration
the CCG, via its remuneration committee has
taken in to consideration the prevailing
economic climate, local market conditions,
the personal impact of a contract of
employment, PAYE status, and the
requirement to obtain best possible value for
money, when reaching the proposed rates of
remuneration.

The Governing Body has ensured the highest
level of independence consistent with the
principle that no member of the committee
shall be involved in recommending their own
remuneration or terms of appointment.
In setting the remuneration of the Clinical
Chief Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer the CCG adheres to the
guiding principles of the Hutton Review of Fair
Pay. In 2015/16 all Governing Body members
received a 1% pay increase.
Current contracts do not require any
performance related elements which would
impact on the remuneration packages.
All Executive and Non-Executive Directors are
subject to individual performance reviews and
their performance is assessed against
personal and corporate objectives. Key
performance objectives will be based on the
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Salary and Allowances (subject to audit)
Single total figure table

There have been no significant awards made to past senior managers.
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Pension Benefits (subject to audit)

As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.
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Compensation on early retirement or for
loss of office
The CCG did not make any payments for Loss
of Office in the Financial Year.

There has been no material change in either
the remuneration of the highest paid member
of the organisation or the number or
composition of the general workforce.

Staff Report
Payments to past directors
Number of Senior Managers by band:
The CCG did not make any payments to past
Senior Managers in the Financial Year.

Pay Multiples (subject to audit)
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the
relationship between the remuneration of the
highest-paid director / member in their
organisation and the median remuneration of
the organisation’s workforce.
Highest Paid
Director
2015/16 Mid
Point of
Median
£5,000 Salary Remuneration Ratio
Band
2015/16
2015/16
£
£
162,500
34,789
4.67

Highest Paid
Director
2014/15 Mid
Point of
Median
£5,000 Salary Remuneration Ratio
Band
2014/15
2014/15
£
£
162,500
34,876
4.66

The banded remuneration of the highest paid
member of the Governing Body in the clinical
commissioning group in the financial year
2015-16 was £162,500 (2014-15 £162,500).
This was 4.67 times (2014-15 4.66) the
median remuneration of the workforce, which
was £34,789 (2014-15 £34,876).
In 2015-16 no employees received
remuneration in excess of the highest-paid
member of the Governing Body.
Remuneration ranged between bands £0 - £5k
and £160k - £165k.
Total remuneration includes salary, nonconsolidated performance-related pay and
benefits-in-kind. It does not include severance
payments, employer pension contributions
and the cash equivalent transfer value of
pensions.
Payments to agency staff are taken into
account in the calculation of median
remuneration.
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Band / Contract
Local spot salary Medical
Non-Exectuive Member /
Director
Spot Salary

Number WTE
1.2
3.4
4.0

Staff numbers
Group
Admin/Clerical
Nursing/Midwifery
Pharmacist
General Practitioner
Allied Health Professionals

Number WTE
71.8
29.5
12.6
3.4
3.0

Staff composition
Breakdown of staff numbers and gender
Group
Female (number
of people)
Governing Body
3
Grade ‘Very Senior 7
Managers’ other
than persons
falling within the
above disclosure
Employees of the
110
CCG

Male (number of
people)
11
3

20

Sickness absence data
In 2015/16 we lost a total of 1,429 full time
equivalent days to sickness absence, equating
to 3.2% based on the available full time
equivalent days. This is an average of 7.4
annual sick days per full time equivalent.
Line managers are committed to providing
support to staff via the Managing Sickness
Policy to provide excellent working conditions,
balancing the health needs of staff against the
needs of the organisation.
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Staff policies applied during the financial
year

keep and develop the abilities of disabled
staff.

We have continued to work in partnership
with trade unions to ensure our Human
Resource policies and procedures are legally
compliant and fit for purpose. These policies
provide a framework for both managers and
staff to work within on a day to day basis.

In addition during 2015 we have renewed our
commitment to being a Mindful Employer.
This is a voluntary agreement to show our
continued support to employers who suffer
from mental health issues. We will continue
work to ensure we meet the Mindful
Employer standard and be recognised as a
healthy workplace for all our staff.

Our HR policies ensure that our staff members
do not experience discrimination, harassment
and victimisation and we ensure equality is
integrated across all our employment
practices and have a range of policies
including the following which is not an
exhaustive list:






Acceptable Standards of Behaviour Policy
(this includes dignity at work);
Equal Opportunities Policy;
Managing Sickness Absence Policy; and
Recruitment and Selection
Learning and Development

Equality impact assessments have been
carried out on all relevant policies. We
continue to monitor the impact of the
implementation of our workforce policies on
our staff to ensure that we are proactively
identifying and addressing any inequalities.
We value diversity and aim to support
protected groups, including disabled people
and people who suffer from mental health
issues. We recognise that in order to remove
barriers experienced by disabled people, we
need to make reasonable adjustments for our
disabled employees, which we do on a case by
case basis, involving occupational health
services as appropriate. We are proud to have
been re-awarded the 'two ticks' positive
about disability symbol by Jobcentre Plus. This
is a nationally recognised symbol which
demonstrates our commitment to employ,
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Expenditure on consultancy
During 2015/16 the CCG incurred £290,000 in
relation to consultancy expenditure

Off-payroll engagements
Table 1: For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2016,
for more than £220 per day and that last longer than six
months:

Number
Number of existing engagements as of 31
March 2016
Of which, the number that have existed:
for less than one year at the time of
reporting
for between one and two years at the time
of reporting
for between 2 and 3 years at the time of
reporting
for between 3 and 4 years at the time of
reporting
for 4 or more years at the time of reporting

8

1
0
7
0
0

All existing off-payroll engagements, outlined
above, have at some point been subject to a
risk based assessment as to whether
assurance is required that the individual is
paying the right amount of tax and, where
necessary, assurance has been sought.
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Number of new engagements, or those that
reached six months in duration, between 1 April
2015 and 31 March 2016

Number
1

Number of new engagements which include
contractual clauses giving Leeds South & East
CCG the right to request assurance in relation to
income tax and National Insurance obligations

1

Number for whom assurance has been
requested

1

Of which:
assurance has been received
1
assurance has not been received
0
engagements terminated as a result of
0
assurance not being received
Table 2: For all new off-payroll engagements between 1 April
2015 and 31 March 2016, for more than £220 per day and that
last longer than six months:

Exit Packages
There were no other agreed departures or
departures where special payments have
been made during the financial year (none
during 2014-15).
These tables report the number and value of
exit packages agreed in the financial year. The
expense associated with these departures
may have been recognised in part or in full in
a previous period.
Exit Package cost band (including any special
payment element)

Table 3: For any off-payroll engagements of board members,
and/or, senior officials with significant financial responsibility,
between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016
Number of off-payroll engagements of board
members, and/or senior officers with significant
financial responsibility, during the financial year.

1

Total no. of individuals on payroll and off-payroll
that have been deemed “board members,
and/or, senior officials with significant financial
responsibility”, during the financial year. This
figure should include both on payroll and offpayroll engagements.

17

Redundancy and other departure costs have
been paid in accordance with the provisions
of the Agenda for Change Terms and
Conditions and CCG Organisational Change
Policy.
Exit costs are accounted for in accordance
with relevant accounting standards and at the
latest in full in the year of departure.

2015-16

2014-15

Compulsory
redundancies

Compulsory
redundancies

Number
Less than £10,000
£10,001 to £25,000
£25,001 to £50,000
£50,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £150,000
£150,001 to £200,000
Over £200,001
Total
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£
1
1

22,777
22,777

Number

£
-
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-

Appendix 1 - Head of
Internal Audit Opinion
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION
ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SYSTEM OF
INTERNAL CONTROL AT
NHS LEEDS SOUTH AND EAST CLINICAL
COMMISSIONING GROUP
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Roles and responsibilities
On behalf of the Clinical Commissioning
Group the Governing Body is collectively
accountable for maintaining a sound system
of internal control and is responsible for
putting in place arrangements for gaining
assurance about the effectiveness of that
overall system.
The Governance Statement is an annual
statement by the Accountable Officer, on
behalf of the Clinical Commissioning Group
and the Governing Body, setting out:






how the individual responsibilities of the
Accountable Officer are discharged with
regard to maintaining a sound system of
internal control that supports the
achievement of policies, aims and
objectives;
the purpose of the system of internal
control as evidenced by a description of
the risk management and review
processes, including the Assurance
Framework process;
the conduct and results of the review of
the effectiveness of the system of internal
control including any disclosures of
significant control failures together with
assurances that actions are or will be
taken where appropriate to address
issues arising.

The organisation’s Assurance Framework
should bring together all of the evidence
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required to support the Governance
Statement requirements.
In accordance with the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards, the Head of Internal Audit
(HoIA) is required to provide an annual
opinion, based upon and limited to the work
performed, on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the organisation’s risk
management, control and governance
processes (i.e. the organisation’s system of
internal control). This is achieved through a
risk-based plan of work, agreed with
management and approved by the Audit
Committee, which should provide a
reasonable level of assurance, subject to the
inherent limitations described below.
The opinion does not imply that Internal Audit
has reviewed all risks and assurances relating
to the organisation. As such, it is one
component that the Clinical Commissioning
Group and Governing Body take into account
in making its Governance Statement.

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion
The purpose of my annual Head of Internal
Audit Opinion is to contribute to the
assurances available to the Accountable
Officer, the Clinical Commissioning Group and
Governing Body which underpins the
assessment of the effectiveness of the
organisation’s system of internal control. This
opinion will in turn assist the organisation in
the completion of its Governance Statement.

My opinion is set out as follows:
1. Overall opinion;
2. Basis for the opinion;
3. Commentary.

My overall opinion is that
Significant assurance can be given that
there is a generally sound system of
internal control, designed to meet the
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organisation’s objectives, and that
controls are generally being applied
consistently. However, some weaknesses
in the design and/or inconsistent
application of controls, may put the
achievement of particular objectives at
risk.
The basis for forming my opinion is as follows:
1. An assessment of the design and
operation of the underpinning
Assurance Framework and supporting
processes; and
2. An assessment of the range of
individual opinions arising from riskbased audit assignments, contained
within the internal audit risk-based
plan, that have been reported
throughout the year. This assessment
has taken account of the relative
materiality of these areas and
management’s progress in respect of
addressing control weaknesses.
The commentary below provides the context
for my opinion and together with the opinion
should be read in its entirety.
The design and operation of the Assurance
Framework and associated processes.
During 2015/2016 the Clinical Commissioning
Group’s (CCG) arrangements for managing
risk and providing assurance to the Governing
Body have continued to mature.
The CCG undertook an internal review of the
governance arrangements in quarter 1 of
2015/2016. This involved a Governing Body
workshop in April 2015 to review the
effectiveness of the governance structure and
complete an assessment of the Governing
Body maturity matrix. The Governing Body
was concerned that the Governing Body
Assurance Framework (GBAF) was being
presented at every Governing Body meeting,
but that it was not being given sufficient time
for in depth discussion and review. Following
the review, the Governing Body has delegated
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responsibility for oversight of the GBAF to
individual committees to maintain oversight
of the strategic risks in their own area. The
GBAF is to be formally presented to the GB
twice a year, for discussion at open
meetings. It was agreed that the subcommittee Chair’s summary reports to the GB
would provide details of any change to the
level or impact of risk in individual areas.
In addition, the Governing Body reviewed the
GBAF at its workshops in June and October
2015. The revised GBAF was approved by the
Audit and Governance Committee on 17
March 2016 and by the Governing Body on 31
March 2016.
A further review of the Risk Management
Strategy was approved by the Governing Body
at its November 2015 meeting. The Risk
Management Strategy was reviewed to take
into account previous internal audit
recommendations and latest best practice.
The Corporate Risk Register has been
reviewed by the Governing Body at each of its
meetings this financial year; the Governing
Body is well sighted on the risks facing the
organisation.
Internal Audit undertook reviews of the
governance framework, and changes made to
the governance framework in preparation for
full delegation of primary care commissioning
responsibilities. Overall opinions of Significant
Assurance have been awarded to the
arrangements in place. In addition Internal
Audit has undertaken a review of the
governance of the Better Care Fund and
provided Significant Assurance.
The range of individual opinions arising from
risk-based audit assignments, contained
within risk-based plans that have been
reported throughout the year.
The 2015/16 Internal Audit Operational Plan
was approved by the Audit Committee on 11
June 2015. The work of Internal Audit
continues to focus on the design and
embedding of core processes to underpin the
delivery of the CCG’s strategic objectives. As
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such the audit plan was structured around the
following key responsibilities of the CCG:







Governance
Securing Improvements in Quality
Commissioning and Contract
Management
Partnerships
Financial Governance
Information Governance.

Following the completion of an audit an audit
report is issued and an assurance level
awarded. The following assurance levels are
used:
Full Assurance

Significant Assurance

Limited Assurance

No Assurance

There is an adequate and
effective system of internal
control designed, and
consistently applied, to
address the risk that system
objectives are not fully
achieved.
There is a generally sound
system of internal control
designed to address the risk
that system objectives are not
fully achieved. However,
there are weaknesses in
design and / or noncompliance with controls that
could put some of the system
objectives at risk.
The system of internal control
has weaknesses in design and
/ or application that put the
systems objectives at risk of
not being achieved.
The system of internal control
has failed or there is a real
and substantial risk that the
system will fail to meet its
objectives.

An action plan is agreed with management. In
order to ensure significant progress is being
made in the implementation of agreed actions
an Audit Recommendations Status Report is
presented to every Audit Committee.
Internal Audit also supports the organisation
when undergoing process design/redesign
through the completion of advisory audit
work. These audits are designed to provide
advice as opposed to an assurance level
during the development phase. No advisory
reports have been No advisory reports have
been completed in 2015/2016.
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The outcome of the assurance audit reports
from the 2015/2016 audit plan are
summarised below.
Audit
Governance Framework
Better Care Fund Governance
Primary Care delegated
Commissioning Governance
Information Governance
Toolkit
Performance Management
Arrangements
Financial Systems
Budgetary Control and
Financial Management
Stakeholder Engagement
Contract Management
Patient Experience

Assurance Level
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

Taking into account the internal audit work
completed, all of my findings and the CCG’s
actions to date in response to my
recommendations to date, I believe no areas
of significant risk remain.

Looking Ahead
The overall opinion of Significant Assurance
for the Head of Internal Audit Opinion is set in
a context of significant challenges facing the
organisation going forwards.
At the Governing Body meeting in March 2016
the CCG was forecasting the achievement of
its key financial duties. At the beginning of the
financial year financial risks were identified.
These have been either managed in year or
have not materialised. As a consequence a
number of non-recurrent investments and
increase in surplus were agreed to ensure the
CCG meets its statutory duties.
Looking ahead to 2016/2017, as at April 2016
the CCG is planning to meet all NHS England
business rules. A number of risks to the
achievement of this position have been
highlighted by the CCG, including uncertainty
regarding the financial position of the main
acute provider and increasing prescribing and
Continuing Care costs. The CCG has identified
a number of QIPP initiatives to manage
demand. There will be a need to keep the
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existing system of control under review to
ensure this supports the CCG in managing this
risk.
In relation to core financial processes the
result of audit work has been Significant
Assurance across all three years. A position of
a deteriorating system of financial controls
has not been identified.

Helen Kemp Taylor
Head of Internal Audit
April 2016
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7.0 INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF THE
GOVERNING BODY OF
NHS LEEDS SOUTH
AND EAST CCG
We have audited the financial statements of
NHS Leeds South & East CCG for the year
ended 31 March 2016, comprising the
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure, Statement of Financial Position,
Statement of Changes in Taxpayers Equity,
Statement of Cash Flows and related notes
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. These financial statements have been
prepared under applicable law and the
accounting polices directed by the NHS
Commissioning Board with the consent of the
Secretary of State as relevant to the Clinical
Commissioning Groups in England. We have
also audited the information in the
Remuneration and Staff Report that is subject
to audit.
This report is made solely to the Members of
the Governing Body of NHS Leeds South &
East CCG, as a body, in accordance with Part 5
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Members of the
Governing Body of the CCG, as a body, those
matters we are required to state to them in
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Members of the Governing
Body of the CCG, as a body, for our audit
work, for this report or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the
Accountable Officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of
Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the
Accountable Officer is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements which give
a true and fair view and is also responsible for
the regularity of expenditure and income. Our
responsibility is to audit, and express an
opinion on, the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors. We are also
responsible for giving an opinion on the
regularity of expenditure and income in
accordance with the Code of Audit Practice
prepared by the Comptroller and Auditor
General under the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Code of Audit
Practice’).
As explained in the Annual Governance
Statement the Accountable Officer is
responsible for the arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the
use of the CCG's resources. We are required
under Section 21(1)(c) of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that
the CCG has made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. Section
21(5)(b) of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 requires that our report must not
contain our opinion if we are satisfied that
proper arrangements are in place.
We are not required to consider, nor have we
considered, whether all aspects of the CCG’s
arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are
free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the CCG’s
circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Accountable Officer,
and the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
In addition we read all the financial and nonfinancial information in the annual report and
accounts to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by
us in the course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider
the implications for our report.
In addition, we are required to obtain
evidence sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the expenditure and income
recorded in the financial statements have
been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern
them.
Scope of the review of arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources
We have undertaken our review in
accordance with the Code of Audit Practice,
having regard to the guidance on the specified
criterion issued by the Comptroller and

Auditor General in November 2015, as to
whether the CCG had proper arrangements to
ensure it took properly informed decisions
and deployed resources to achieve planned
and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and
local people. The Comptroller and Auditor
General determined this criterion as that
necessary for us to consider under the Code
of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves
whether the CCG put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.
We planned our work in accordance with the
Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we
considered necessary to form a view on
whether, in all significant respects, the CCG
had put in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:




give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the CCG as at 31 March 2016
and of its net operating expenditure for
the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in
accordance with the accounting polices
directed by the NHS Commissioning Board
with the consent of the Secretary of State
as relevant to Clinical Commissioning
Groups in England.

Opinion on regularity
In our opinion, in all material respects the
expenditure and income have been applied to
the purposes intended by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Opinion on other matters



In our opinion:




the parts of the Remuneration and Staff
Report subject to audit have been
properly prepared in accordance with the
accounting polices directed by the NHS
Commissioning Board with the consent of
the Secretary of State as relevant to
Clinical Commissioning Groups in England;
and
the other information published together
with the audited financial statements in
the Annual Report and Accounts is
consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We are required to report to you if:




in our opinion, the Governance Statement
does not reflect compliance with guidance
issued by the NHS Commissioning Board;
we refer a matter to the Secretary of
State under section 30 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 because we
have reason to believe that the CCG, or an
officer of the CCG, is about to make, or
has made, a decision which involves or
would involve the body incurring unlawful
expenditure, or is about to take, or has
begun to take a course of action which, if
followed to its conclusion, would be
unlawful and likely to cause a loss or
deficiency; or





we issue a report in the public interest
under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014; or
we make a written recommendation to
the CCG under section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or
we are not satisfied that the CCG has
made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources for the year ended 31
March 2016.

We have nothing to report in respect of the
above responsibilities.
Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit
of the accounts of NHS Leeds South & East
CCG in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
and the Code of Audit Practice.

Rashpal Khangura, for and on behalf of KPMG
LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
Sovereign Square, Leeds, LS1 4DA
25 May 2016

7.1 Annual Accounts
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2016
Note

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Total Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits

4

7,307

6,164

Operating Expenses

5

390,661

378,739

Other operating revenue

2

(35,466)

(36,315)

362,502

348,588

Investment Revenue

-

-

Other (gains)/losses

-

-

Net operating expenditure before interest

Finance costs
Net operating expenditure for the financial year
Net (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption
Total Net Expenditure for the year

-

-

362,502

348,588

-

-

362,502

348,588

3,585

3,657

Of which:
Administration Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits

4

Operating Expenses

5

3,096

3,508

Other operating revenue

2

(1,467)

(1,453)

5,214

5,712

Net administration costs before interest
Programme Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits

4

3,722

2,507

Operating Expenses

5

387,565

375,231

Other operating revenue

2

(33,999)

(34,862)

Net programme expenditure before interest

357,288

342,876

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Impairments and reversals

-

-

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment

-

-

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangibles

-

-

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets

-

-

Movements in other reserves

-

-

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets

-

-

Net gain/(loss) on assets held for sale

-

-

Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes

-

-

Share of (profit)/loss of associates and joint ventures

-

-

Reclassification Adjustments

-

-

On disposal of available for sale financial assets

-

-

362,502

348,588

Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year
The notes on the following pages form part of this statement.

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016
31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015
£000

-

-

11
12
13
14

2,486
25
2,511

1,819
51
1,870

15

-

-

Total current assets

2,511

1,870

Total assets

2,511

1,870

(15,130)
(163)
(15,293)

(16,250)
(355)
(16,605)

(12,782)

(14,735)

(292)
(292)

(525)
(525)

Assets less Liabilities

(13,074)

(15,260)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund
Revaluation reserve
Other reserves
Charitable Reserves
Total taxpayers' equity

(13,074)
(13,074)

(15,260)
(15,260)

Note
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment property
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Non-current assets held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total current liabilities

17
18
19
20
24

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

17
18
19
20
24

The notes on the following pages form part of this statement.
The financial statements were approved by the Governing Body on 19 May 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Dr Andy Harris
Clinical Chief Officer (Accountable Officer)

19 May 2016

Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended 31 March 2016
General
fund
£000

Revaluation
reserve
£000

Other
reserves
£000

Total
reserves
£000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16
Balance at 1 April 2015

(15,260)

-

-

(15,260)

Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from closed NHS bodies
Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 1 April 2015

(15,260)

-

-

(15,260)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16
Net operating expenditure for the financial year

(362,502)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve

(362,502)

-

-

-

-

(362,502)

-

-

(362,502)

Net funding

364,688

-

-

364,688

Balance at 31 March 2016

(13,074)

-

-

(13,074)

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions
Movements in other reserves
Transfers between reserves
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial Year

General
fund
£000
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Balance at 1 April 2014
Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS bodies as a result of the 1 April 2014
transition
Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 1 April 2014
Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Net operating costs for the financial year
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve

Revaluation
reserve
£000

Other
reserves
£000

Total
reserves
£000

(13,809)
-

-

-

(13,809)
-

(13,809)

-

-

(13,809)

-

-

-

(348,588)
-

(348,588)

-

-

(348,588)

Net funding

347,137

-

-

347,137

Balance at 31 March 2015

(15,260)

-

-

(15,260)

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions
Movements in other reserves
Transfers between reserves
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial Year

The notes on the following pages form part of this statement.

(348,588)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2016
Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments and reversals
Movement due to transfer by Modified Absorption
Other gains (losses) on foreign exchange
Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Interest paid
Release of PFI deferred credit
Other Gains & Losses
Finance Costs
Unwinding of Discounts
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Provisions utilised
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities

11
17
24
24

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received
(Payments) for property, plant and equipment
(Payments) for intangible assets
(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health
(Payments) for other financial assets
(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT)
Loans made in respect of LIFT
Loans repaid in respect of LIFT
Rental revenue
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Grant in Aid Funding Received
Other loans received
Other loans repaid
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on Statement of Financial Position PFI
and
LIFTgrants and other capital receipts
Capital
Capital receipts surrendered
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year

The notes on the following pages form part of these statements.

14

2015-16
£000

2014-15
£000

(362,502)
(667)
(1,120)
(159)
(266)
(364,714)

(348,588)
208
1,282
(90)
43
(347,145)

(364,714)

(347,145)

364,688
364,688

347,137
347,137

(26)

(8)

51

59

-

-

25

51

Notes to the financial statements
1.
Accounting Policies
NHS England has directed that the financial
statements of clinical commissioning groups
shall meet the accounting requirements of the
Manual for Accounts issued by the
Department of Health. Consequently, the
following financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Manual for
Accounts 2015-16 issued by the Department
of Health. The accounting policies contained
in the Manual for Accounts follow
International Financial Reporting Standards to
the extent that they are meaningful and
appropriate to clinical commissioning groups,
as determined by HM Treasury, which is
advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory
Board. Where the Manual for Accounts
permits a choice of accounting policy, the
accounting policy which is judged to be most
appropriate to the particular circumstances of
the clinical commissioning group for the
purpose of giving a true and fair view has
been selected. The particular policies adopted
by the clinical commissioning group are
described below. They have been applied
consistently in dealing with items considered
material in relation to the accounts.
1.1

Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on the
going concern basis.
Public sector bodies are assumed to be going
concerns where the continuation of the
provision of a service in the future is
anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of
financial provision for that service in
published documents.
Where a clinical commissioning group ceases
to exist, it considers whether or not its
services will continue to be provided (using
the same assets, by another public sector

entity) in determining whether to use the
concept of going concern for the final set of
Financial Statements. If services will continue
to be provided the financial statements are
prepared on the going concern basis.
1.2

Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under
the historical cost convention modified to
account for the revaluation of property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, inventories
and certain financial assets and financial
liabilities.
1.3
Acquisitions & Discontinued
Operations
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only
if they are taken on from outside the public
sector. Activities are considered to be
‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. They
are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they
transfer from one public sector body to
another.
1.4
Movement of Assets within the
Department of Health Group
Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be
accounted for by use of absorption accounting
in line with the Government Financial
Reporting Manual, issued by HM Treasury.
The Government Financial Reporting Manual
does not require retrospective adoption, so
prior year transactions (which have been
accounted for under merger accounting) have
not been restated. Absorption accounting
requires that entities account for their
transactions in the period in which they took
place, with no restatement of performance
required when functions transfer within the
public sector. Where assets and liabilities
transfer, the gain or loss resulting is
recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is
disclosed separately from operating costs.

Other transfers of assets and liabilities within
the Department of Health Group are
accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly
give rise to income and expenditure entries.



1.5



Charitable Funds

From 2014-15, the divergence from the
Government Financial Reporting Manual that
NHS Charitable Funds are not consolidated
with bodies’ own returns is removed. Under
the provisions of IAS 27: Consolidated &
Separate Financial Statements, those
Charitable Funds that fall under common
control with NHS bodies are consolidated
within the entities’ accounts.
1.6

Pooled Budgets

Where the clinical commissioning group has
entered into a pooled budget arrangement
under Section 75 of the National Health
Service Act 2006 the clinical commissioning
group accounts for its share of the assets,
liabilities, income and expenditure arising
from the activities of the pooled budget,
identified in accordance with the pooled
budget agreement.
If the clinical commissioning group is in a
“jointly controlled operation”, the clinical
commissioning group recognises:





The assets the clinical commissioning
group controls;
The liabilities the clinical commissioning
group incurs;
The expenses the clinical commissioning
group incurs; and,
The clinical commissioning group’s share
of the income from the pooled budget
activities.

If the clinical commissioning group is involved
in a “jointly controlled assets” arrangement,
in addition to the above, the clinical
commissioning group recognises:



The clinical commissioning group’s share
of the jointly controlled assets (classified
according to the nature of the assets);
The clinical commissioning group’s share
of any liabilities incurred jointly; and,
The clinical commissioning group’s share
of the expenses jointly incurred.

1.7
Critical Accounting Judgements &
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In the application of the clinical
commissioning group’s accounting policies,
management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from those estimates
and the estimates and underlying
assumptions are continually reviewed.
Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
1.7.1 Critical Judgements in Applying
Accounting Policies
Where critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations that management has
made in the process of applying the clinical
commissioning group’s accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial
statements, details are provided in the
relevant notes to the accounts.

1.7.2 Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty
Where key estimations that management has
made in the process of applying the clinical
commissioning group’s accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial
statements, details are provided in the
relevant notes to the accounts.
1.8

Revenue

Revenue in respect of services provided is
recognised when, and to the extent that,
performance occurs, and is measured at the
fair value of the consideration receivable.
Where income is received for a specific
activity that is to be delivered in the following
year, that income is deferred.
1.9

Employee Benefits

1.9.1

Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related
payments are recognised in the period in
which the service is received from employees,
including bonuses earned but not yet taken.
The cost of leave earned but not taken by
employees at the end of the period is
recognised in the financial statements to the
extent that employees are permitted to carry
forward leave into the following period.
1.9.2

Retirement Benefit Costs

Past and present employees are covered by
the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.
The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit
scheme that covers NHS employers, General
Practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State, in England
and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be
run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to
identify their share of the underlying scheme

assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is
accounted for as if it were a defined
contribution scheme: the cost to the clinical
commissioning group of participating in the
scheme is taken as equal to the contributions
payable to the scheme for the accounting
period.
For early retirements other than those due to
ill health the additional pension liabilities are
not funded by the scheme. The full amount of
the liability for the additional costs is charged
to expenditure at the time the clinical
commissioning group commits itself to the
retirement, regardless of the method of
payment.
1.10

Other Expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised
when, and to the extent that, the goods or
services have been received. They are
measured at the fair value of the
consideration payable.
Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants
are recognised when the clinical
commissioning group has a present legal or
constructive obligation, which occurs when all
of the conditions attached to the payment
have been met.
1.11

Property, Plant & Equipment

1.11.1 Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised
if:
It is held for use in delivering services or for
administrative purposes;




It is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to, or service potential
will be supplied to the clinical
commissioning group;
It is expected to be used for more than
one financial year;







The cost of the item can be measured
reliably; and,
The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or,
Collectively, a number of items have a
cost of at least £5,000 and individually
have a cost of more than £250, where the
assets are functionally interdependent,
they had broadly simultaneous purchase
dates, are anticipated to have
simultaneous disposal dates and are
under single managerial control; or,
Items form part of the initial equipping
and setting-up cost of a new building,
ward or unit, irrespective of their
individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building,
includes a number of components with
significantly different asset lives, the
components are treated as separate assets
and depreciated over their own useful
economic lives.
1.11.2 Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are
measured initially at cost, representing the
cost directly attributable to acquiring or
constructing the asset and bringing it to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. All assets are measured
subsequently at valuation.
Land and buildings used for the clinical
commissioning group’s services or for
administrative purposes are stated in the
statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the
date of revaluation less any impairment.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are
not materially different from those that would
be determined at the end of the reporting
period. Fair values are determined as follows:




Land and non-specialised buildings –
market value for existing use; and,
Specialised buildings – depreciated
replacement cost.

HM Treasury has adopted a standard
approach to depreciated replacement cost
valuations based on modern equivalent assets
and, where it would meet the location
requirements of the service being provided,
an alternative site can be valued.
Properties in the course of construction for
service or administration purposes are carried
at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees but not borrowing
costs, which are recognised as expenses
immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets
held at fair value. Assets are re-valued and
depreciation commences when they are
brought into use.
Fixtures and equipment are carried at
depreciated historic cost as this is not
considered to be materially different from
current value in existing use.
An increase arising on revaluation is taken to
the revaluation reserve except when it
reverses an impairment for the same asset
previously recognised in expenditure, in which
case it is credited to expenditure to the extent
of the decrease previously charged there. A
revaluation decrease that does not result
from a loss of economic value or service
potential is recognised as an impairment
charged to the revaluation reserve to the
extent that there is a balance on the reserve
for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.
Impairment losses that arise from a clear
consumption of economic benefit are taken to
expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in
the revaluation reserve are reported as other
comprehensive income in the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

1.11.3 Subsequent Expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an
asset beyond its original specification, the
directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where
subsequent expenditure restores the asset to
its original specification, the expenditure is
capitalised and any existing carrying value of
the item replaced is written-out and charged
to operating expenses.
1.12

Intangible Assets









1.12.1 Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets
without physical substance, which are capable
of sale separately from the rest of the clinical
commissioning group’s business or which
arise from contractual or other legal rights.
They are recognised only:





When it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to, or service potential
be provided to, the clinical commissioning
group;
Where the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably; and,
Where the cost is at least £5,000.

Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at fair value. Software that
is integral to the operating of hardware, for
example an operating system, is capitalised as
part of the relevant item of property, plant
and equipment. Software that is not integral
to the operation of hardware, for example
application software, is capitalised as an
intangible asset. Expenditure on research is
not capitalised but is recognised as an
operating expense in the period in which it is
incurred. Internally-generated assets are
recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:



The technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use;
The intention to complete the intangible
asset and use it;
The ability to sell or use the intangible
asset;
How the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits or
service potential;
The availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete
the intangible asset and sell or use it; and,
The ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

1.12.2 Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internallygenerated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
criteria above are initially met. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, the expenditure is recognised in
the period in which it is incurred.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at current value in existing use by
reference to an active market, or, where no
active market exists, at the lower of
depreciated replacement cost or the value in
use where the asset is income generating .
Internally-developed software is held at
historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of
increases in development costs and
technological advances.
1.13 Depreciation, Amortisation &
Impairments
Freehold land, properties under construction,
and assets held for sale are not depreciated.
Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are
charged to write off the costs or valuation of
property, plant and equipment and intangible

non-current assets, less any residual value,
over their estimated useful lives, in a manner
that reflects the consumption of economic
benefits or service potential of the assets. The
estimated useful life of an asset is the period
over which the clinical commissioning group
expects to obtain economic benefits or
service potential from the asset. This is
specific to the clinical commissioning group
and may be shorter than the physical life of
the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and
residual values are reviewed each year end,
with the effect of any changes recognised on a
prospective basis. Assets held under finance
leases are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives.
At each reporting period end, the clinical
commissioning group checks whether there is
any indication that any of its tangible or
intangible non-current assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If there is indication of an
impairment loss, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated to determine whether
there has been a loss and, if so, its amount.
Intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually.
A revaluation decrease that does not result
from a loss of economic value or service
potential is recognised as an impairment
charged to the revaluation reserve to the
extent that there is a balance on the reserve
for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.
Impairment losses that arise from a clear
consumption of economic benefit are taken to
expenditure. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of the recoverable amount but capped at the
amount that would have been determined
had there been no initial impairment loss. The
reversal of the impairment loss is credited to
expenditure to the extent of the decrease
previously charged there and thereafter to
the revaluation reserve.

1.14

Donated Assets

Donated non-current assets are capitalised at
their fair value on receipt, with a matching
credit to Income. They are valued,
depreciated and impaired as described above
for purchased assets. Gains and losses on
revaluations, impairments and sales are as
described above for purchased assets.
Deferred income is recognised only where
conditions attached to the donation preclude
immediate recognition of the gain.

1.15

Government Grants

The value of assets received by means of a
government grant are credited directly to
income. Deferred income is recognised only
where conditions attached to the grant
preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.16

Non-current Assets Held For Sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met when:




The sale is highly probable;
The asset is available for immediate sale
in its present condition; and,
Management is committed to the sale,
which is expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured
at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Fair value is
open market value including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an
asset is the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount and is
recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure. On disposal,
the balance for the asset on the revaluation
reserve is transferred to the general reserve.
Property, plant and equipment that is to be
scrapped or demolished does not qualify for
recognition as held for sale. Instead, it is
retained as an operational asset and its
economic life is adjusted. The asset is derecognised when it is scrapped or demolished.
1.17

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.
1.17.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as
Lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under
finance leases are initially recognised, at the
inception of the lease, at fair value or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments, with a matching liability for
the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in calculating the
clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit.
Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives are recognised
initially as a liability and subsequently as a
reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the
land and building components are separated
and individually assessed as to whether they
are operating or finance leases.
1.17.2 The Clinical Commissioning Group as
Lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the
amount of the clinical commissioning group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return
on the clinical commissioning group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.
Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
1.18
Private Finance Initiative
Transactions
HM Treasury has determined that
government bodies shall account for
infrastructure Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
schemes where the government body
controls the use of the infrastructure and the
residual interest in the infrastructure at the
end of the arrangement as service concession
arrangements, following the principles of the
requirements of IFRIC 12. The clinical
commissioning group therefore recognises
the PFI asset as an item of property, plant and
equipment together with a liability to pay for
it. The services received under the contract
are recorded as operating expenses.

The annual unitary payment is separated into
the following component parts, using
appropriate estimation techniques where
necessary:




Payment for the fair value of services
received;
Payment for the PFI asset, including
finance costs; and,
Payment for the replacement of
components of the asset during the
contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.

1.18.1 Services Received
The fair value of services received in the year
is recorded under the relevant expenditure
headings within ‘operating expenses’.
1.18.2 PFI Asset
The PFI assets are recognised as property,
plant and equipment, when they come into
use. The assets are measured initially at fair
value in accordance with the principles of
IAS17. Subsequently, the assets are measured
at fair value, which is kept up to date in
accordance with the clinical commissioning
group’s approach for each relevant class of
asset in accordance with the principles of IAS
16.
1.18.3 PFI Liability
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time
as the PFI assets are recognised. It is
measured initially at the same amount as the
fair value of the PFI assets and is subsequently
measured as a finance lease liability in
accordance with IAS 17.
An annual finance cost is calculated by
applying the implicit interest rate in the lease
to the opening lease liability for the period,
and is charged to ‘finance costs’ within the
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure.

The element of the annual unitary payment
that is allocated as a finance lease rental is
applied to meet the annual finance cost and
to repay the lease liability over the contract
term.
An element of the annual unitary payment
increase due to cumulative indexation is
allocated to the finance lease. In accordance
with IAS 17, this amount is not included in the
minimum lease payments, but is instead
treated as contingent rent and is expensed as
incurred. In substance, this amount is a
finance cost in respect of the liability and the
expense is presented as a contingent finance
cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure.
1.18.4 Lifecycle Replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the
operator during the contract (‘lifecycle
replacement’) are capitalised where they
meet the clinical commissioning group’s
criteria for capital expenditure. They are
capitalised at the time they are provided by
the operator and are measured initially at
their fair value.
The element of the annual unitary payment
allocated to lifecycle replacement is predetermined for each year of the contract from
the operator’s planned programme of
lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle
component is provided earlier or later than
expected, a short-term finance lease liability
or prepayment is recognised respectively.
Where the fair value of the lifecycle
component is less than the amount
determined in the contract, the difference is
recognised as an expense when the
replacement is provided. If the fair value is
greater than the amount determined in the
contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’
asset and a deferred income balance is
recognised. The deferred income is released

to the operating income over the shorter of
the remaining contract period or the useful
economic life of the replacement component.
1.18.5 Assets Contributed by the Clinical
Commissioning Group to the Operator For
Use in the Scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme
continue to be recognised as items of
property, plant and equipment in the clinical
commissioning group’s Statement of Financial
Position.
1.18.6 Other Assets Contributed by the
Clinical Commissioning Group to the
Operator
Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments,
surplus property) by the clinical
commissioning group to the operator before
the asset is brought into use, which are
intended to defray the operator’s capital
costs, are recognised initially as prepayments
during the construction phase of the contract.
Subsequently, when the asset is made
available to the clinical commissioning group,
the prepayment is treated as an initial
payment towards the finance lease liability
and is set against the carrying value of the
liability.
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time
as the PFI assets are recognised. It is
measured at the present value of the
minimum lease payments, discounted using
the implicit interest rate. It is subsequently
measured as a finance lease liability in
accordance with IAS 17.
1.19

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value using the first-in firstout cost formula. This is considered to be a
reasonable approximation to fair value due to
the high turnover of stocks.

1.20

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any
financial institution repayable without penalty
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash
equivalents are investments that mature in 3
months or less from the date of acquisition
and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash
equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and that form
an integral part of the clinical commissioning
group’s cash management.
1.21

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the clinical
commissioning group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the clinical
commissioning group will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The
amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s
discount rate as follows:






Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years
inclusive): Minus 1.55% (2014-15: minus
1.50%)
Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years
inclusive): Minus 1% (2014-15: minus
1.05%)
Timing of cash flows (over 10 years):
Minus 0.80% (2014-15: plus 2.20%)

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to

be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursements will be
received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
A restructuring provision is recognised when
the clinical commissioning group has
developed a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid
expectation in those affected that it will carry
out the restructuring by starting to implement
the plan or announcing its main features to
those affected by it. The measurement of a
restructuring provision includes only the
direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring, which are those amounts that
are both necessarily entailed by the
restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of the entity.
1.22

Clinical Negligence Costs

The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk
pooling scheme under which the clinical
commissioning group pays an annual
contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority
which in return settles all clinical negligence
claims. The contribution is charged to
expenditure. Although the NHS Litigation
Authority is administratively responsible for
all clinical negligence cases the legal liability
remains with the clinical commissioning
group.
1.23

Non-clinical Risk Pooling

The clinical commissioning group participates
in the Property Expenses Scheme and the
Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are
risk pooling schemes under which the clinical
commissioning group pays an annual
contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority
and, in return, receives assistance with the
costs of claims arising. The annual
membership contributions, and any excesses
payable in respect of particular claims are

charged to operating expenses as and when
they become due.
1.24

Continuing healthcare risk pooling

In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme was introduced
by NHS England for continuing healthcare
claims, for claim periods prior to 31 March
2013. Under the scheme clinical
commissioning group contribute annually to a
pooled fund, which is used to settle the
claims.
1.25 Carbon Reduction Commitment
Scheme
Carbon Reduction Commitment and similar
allowances are accounted for as government
grant funded intangible assets if they are not
expected to be realised within twelve months,
and otherwise as other current assets. They
are valued at open market value. As the
clinical commissioning group makes
emissions, a provision is recognised with an
offsetting transfer from deferred income. The
provision is settled on surrender of the
allowances. The asset, provision and deferred
income amounts are valued at fair value at
the end of the reporting period.
1.26

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the clinical commissioning group, or
a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that a payment will
be required to settle the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured
sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is
disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is
remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the
clinical commissioning group. A contingent
asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

fair value through profit and loss. They are
held at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss recognised in calculating the clinical
commissioning group’s surplus or deficit for
the year. The net gain or loss incorporates any
interest earned on the financial asset.

Where the time value of money is material,
contingencies are disclosed at their present
value.

Held to maturity investments are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity,
and there is a positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. After initial recognition, they
are held at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.
Interest is recognised using the effective
interest method.

1.27

Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the
clinical commissioning group becomes party
to the financial instrument contract or, in the
case of trade receivables, when the goods or
services have been delivered. Financial assets
are derecognised when the contractual rights
have expired or the asset has been
transferred.

1.27.2 Held to Maturity Assets

1.27.3 Available For Sale Financial Assets




Financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss;
Held to maturity investments;
Available for sale financial assets; and,

Available for sale financial assets are nonderivative financial assets that are designated
as available for sale or that do not fall within
any of the other three financial asset
classifications. They are measured at fair
value with changes in value taken to the
revaluation reserve, with the exception of
impairment losses. Accumulated gains or
losses are recycled to surplus/deficit on derecognition.



Loans and receivables.

1.27.4 Loans & Receivables

Financial assets are classified into the
following categories:


The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

1.27.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss
Embedded derivatives that have different
risks and characteristics to their host
contracts, and contracts with embedded
derivatives whose separate value cannot be
ascertained, are treated as financial assets at

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments which are not quoted in an active
market. After initial recognition, they are
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest is recognised using the
effective interest method.
Fair value is determined by reference to
quoted market prices where possible,
otherwise by valuation techniques.

The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset, to the initial fair value of the
financial asset.
At the end of the reporting period, the clinical
commissioning group assesses whether any
financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair
value through profit and loss’ are impaired.
Financial assets are impaired and impairment
losses recognised if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events which occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and which has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the asset.

clinical commissioning group becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument or, in the case of trade payables,
when the goods or services have been
received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised
when the liability has been discharged, that is,
the liability has been paid or has expired.
Loans from the Department of Health are
recognised at historical cost. Otherwise,
financial liabilities are initially recognised at
fair value.
1.28.1 Financial Guarantee Contract
Liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the revised future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate. The
loss is recognised in expenditure and the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through a provision for impairment of
receivables.



If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through
expenditure to the extent that the carrying
amount of the receivable at the date of the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Embedded derivatives that have different
risks and characteristics to their host
contracts, and contracts with embedded
derivatives whose separate value cannot be
ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit and loss. They are
held at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss recognised in the clinical commissioning
group’s surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss
incorporates any interest payable on the
financial liability.

1.28

1.28.3 Other Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the
statement of financial position when the



The premium received (or imputed) for
entering into the guarantee less
cumulative amortisation; and,
The amount of the obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance
with IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

1.28.2 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss

After initial recognition, all other financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method, except
for loans from Department of Health, which
are carried at historic cost. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the
life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of
the financial liability. Interest is recognised
using the effective interest method.
1.29

Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the clinical
commissioning group are outside the scope of
VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply
and input tax on purchases is not recoverable.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant
expenditure category or included in the
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets.
Where output tax is charged or input VAT is
recoverable, the amounts are stated net of
VAT.
1.30

Foreign Currencies

The clinical commissioning group’s functional
currency and presentational currency is
sterling. Transactions denominated in a
foreign currency are translated into sterling at
the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot
exchange rate on 31 March. Resulting
exchange gains and losses for either of these
are recognised in the clinical commissioning
group’s surplus/deficit in the period in which
they arise.
1.31

Third Party Assets

Assets belonging to third parties (such as
money held on behalf of patients) are not
recognised in the accounts since the clinical
commissioning group has no beneficial
interest in them.

1.32

Losses & Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that
Parliament would not have contemplated
when it agreed funds for the health service or
passed legislation. By their nature they are
items that ideally should not arise. They are
therefore subject to special control
procedures compared with the generality of
payments. They are divided into different
categories, which govern the way that
individual cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to
the relevant functional headings in
expenditure on an accruals basis, including
losses which would have been made good
through insurance cover had the clinical
commissioning group not been bearing its
own risks (with insurance premiums then
being included as normal revenue
expenditure).
1.33

Subsidiaries

Material entities over which the clinical
commissioning group has the power to
exercise control so as to obtain economic or
other benefits are classified as subsidiaries
and are consolidated. Their income and
expenses; gains and losses; assets, liabilities
and reserves; and cash flows are consolidated
in full into the appropriate financial statement
lines. Appropriate adjustments are made on
consolidation where the subsidiary’s
accounting policies are not aligned with the
clinical commissioning group or where the
subsidiary’s accounting date is not coterminus.
Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for
sale’ are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to
sell’.

1.34

Associates

Material entities over which the clinical
commissioning group has the power to
exercise significant influence so as to obtain
economic or other benefits are classified as
associates and are recognised in the clinical
commissioning group’s accounts using the
equity method. The investment is recognised
initially at cost and is adjusted subsequently
to reflect the clinical commissioning group’s
share of the entity’s profit/loss and other
gains/losses. It is also reduced when any
distribution is received by the clinical
commissioning group from the entity.
Joint ventures that are classified as ‘held for
sale’ are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to
sell’.
1.35

Joint Ventures

Material entities over which the clinical
commissioning group has joint control with
one or more other parties so as to obtain
economic or other benefits are classified as
joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method.
Joint ventures that are classified as ‘held for
sale’ are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to
sell’.
1.36

Joint Operations

Joint operations are activities undertaken by
the clinical commissioning group in
conjunction with one or more other parties
but which are not performed through a
separate entity. The clinical commissioning
group records its share of the income and
expenditure; gains and losses; assets and
liabilities; and cash flows.

1.37

Research & Development

Research and development expenditure is
charged in the year in which it is incurred,
except insofar as development expenditure
relates to a clearly defined project and the
benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as
assured. Expenditure so deferred is limited to
the value of future benefits expected and is
amortised through the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure on a
systematic basis over the period expected to
benefit from the project. It should be revalued on the basis of current cost. The
amortisation is calculated on the same basis
as depreciation.
1.38 Accounting Standards That Have
Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted
The Government Financial Reporting Manual
does not require the following Standards and
Interpretations to be applied in 2015-16, all of
which are subject to consultation:




IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with
Customers

The application of the Standards as revised
would not have a material impact on the
accounts for 2015-16, were they applied in
that year.

2. Other Operating Revenue

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits

2015-16

2015-16

2015-16

2014-15

Total

Admin

Programme

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

32

32

-

-

Patient transport services

-

-

-

-

Prescription fees and charges

-

-

-

-

Dental fees and charges

-

-

-

-

Education, training and research

1

-

1

-

Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure: NHS

-

-

-

-

Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure: non-NHS

-

-

-

-

Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions: NHS Charity

-

-

-

-

Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions

-

-

-

-

35,409

1,430

33,979

36,201

Continuing Health Care risk pool contributions

-

-

-

-

Income generation

-

-

-

-

Rental revenue from finance leases

-

-

-

-

Non-patient care services to other bodies

Rental revenue from operating leases
Other revenue
Total other operating revenue

-

-

-

-

24

5

19

114

35,466

1,467

33,999

36,315

Admin revenue is revenue received that is not directly attributable to the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.
Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of the CCG and
credited to the General Fund.

Non-patient care services to other bodies
There are three Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) in Leeds: Leeds South and East (LSE), Leeds West (LW) and Leeds North (LN).
Collaborative arrangements exist whereby each CCG leads on an area of commissioning on behalf of all three CCGs:
·

LSE lead on continuing health care, community services and children's services

·

LW lead on acute services

·

LN lead on mental health, learning disabilities and urgent care

Recharges in relation to the collaborative arrangements across the three Leeds CCGs are classified as “Non-patient care services to other bodies”.

3. Revenue
Revenue is totally from the supply of services. The Clinical Commissioning Group receives no revenue from the sale of goods.

4. Employee benefits and staff numbers
4.1.1 Employee benefits
2015-16

Total
£000

Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Other pension costs
Other post-employment benefits
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Gross employee benefits expenditure

Total
Permanent
Employees
£000

Other

Total

£000

£000

Admin
Permanent
Employees
£000

Other

Total

£000

£000

Programme
Permanent
Employees
£000

Other
£000

6,326
375
583
23
7,307

4,613
375
583
23
5,594

1,713
1,713

3,005
228
329
23
3,585

2,638
228
329
23
3,218

367
367

3,321
147
254
3,722

1,975
147
254
2,376

1,346
1,346

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note
4.1.2)
Total - Net admin employee benefits including
capitalised costs

(32)
7,275

(32)
5,562

1,713

(32)
3,553

(32)
3,186

367

3,722

2,376

1,346

Less: Employee costs capitalised
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

7,275

5,562

1,713

3,553

3,186

367

3,722

2,376

1,346

2014-15

Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Gross employee benefits expenditure

Total

Total
Permanent
Employees

Other

Total

Admin
Permanent
Employees

Other

Total

Programme
Permanent
Employees

Other

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

5,317
336
511
6,164

4,152
336
511
4,999

1,165
1,165

3,125
220
312
3,657

2,626
220
312
3,158

499
499

2,192
116
199
2,507

1,526
116
199
1,841

666
666

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note
4.1.2)
Total - Net admin employee benefits including
capitalised costs

6,164

4,999

1,165

3,657

3,158

499

2,507

1,841

666

Less: Employee costs capitalised
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

6,164

4,999

1,165

3,657

3,158

499

2,507

1,841

666

Included in employee benefits and staff numbers are expenditure and staff numbers in relation to the Clinical Commissioning Groups' collaborative arrangements, described in detail in note 2.

4.1.2 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits

Total
£000

2015-16
Permanent
Employees
£000

2014-15
Other
£000

Total
£000

Salaries and wages

(26)

(26)

-

-

Social security costs

(2)

(2)

-

-

Employer contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme

(4)

(4)

-

-

Other pension costs

-

-

-

-

Other post-employment benefits

-

-

-

-

Other employment benefits

-

-

-

-

Termination benefits

-

-

-

-

(32)

(32)

-

-

Employee Benefits - Revenue

Total recoveries in respect of employee benefits

4.2 Average number of people employed
2015-16
Permanently
employed
Number

Other
Number

Total
Number

162
162

119

43

140

-

-

-

-

Total
Number
Total

2014-15

Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent people engaged on capital projects

4.3 Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements

Total Days Lost

2015-16
Number
881

2014-15
Number
689

Total Staff Years

119

104

7

7

Average working Days Lost

The figures included above are provided by the Health and Social Information Centre on the Clinical Commissioning Group's behalf, collated
annually on a calendar year basis (January - December).

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds

2015-16
Number

2014-15
Number

-

1

£000

£000

-

14

Ill health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme:

Total additional Pensions liabilities accrued in the year

4.4 Exit packages agreed in the financial year
2015-16

2014-15

Compulsory redundancies

Compulsory redundancies

Number

£

Number

£

Less than £10,000

-

-

-

-

£10,001 to £25,000

1

22,777

-

-

£25,001 to £50,000

-

-

-

-

£50,001 to £100,000

-

-

-

-

£100,001 to £150,000

-

-

-

-

£150,001 to £200,000

-

-

-

-

Over £200,001

-

-

-

-

Total

1

22,777

-

-

There were no other agreed departures or departures where special payments have been made during the financial year (none during
2014-15).
These tables report the number and value of exit packages agreed in the financial year. The expense associated with these departures may
have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.
Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the Agenda for Change Terms and Conditions
and CCG Organisational Change Policy.
Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest in full in the year of departure.

4.5

Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by
the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.
Details of the benefits payable under these
provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions
website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.
The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit
scheme that covers NHS employers, GP
practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State, in England
and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be
run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to
identify their share of the underlying scheme
assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it
were a defined contribution scheme: the cost
to the clinical commissioning group of
participating in the scheme is taken as equal
to the contributions payable to the scheme
for the accounting period.
The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial
valuation every four years (until 2004, every
five years) and an accounting valuation every
year. An outline of these follows:

4.5.1

Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the
level of liability in respect of the benefits due
under the Scheme (taking into account its
recent demographic experience), and to
recommend the contribution rates to be paid
by employers and scheme members. The last
such valuation, which determined current
contribution rates was undertaken as at 31
March 2012 and covered the period from 1
April 2008 to that date. Details can be found
on the pension scheme website at
www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.
For 2015-16, employers’ contributions of
£583,483 were payable to the NHS Pensions
Scheme (2014-15: £511,485) at the rate of
14.3% of pensionable pay. The scheme’s
actuary reviews employer contributions,
usually every four years and now based on
HMT Valuation Directions, following a full
scheme valuation. The latest review used
data from 31 March 2012 and was published
on the Government website on 9 June 2014.
These costs are included in the NHS pension
line of note 4.

5. Operating expenses
2015- 16
Total
£000

2015-16
Admin
£000

2015-16
Programme
£000

2014-15
Total
£000

6,823
484
7,307

3,101
484
3,585

3,722
3,722

5,632
532
6,164

4,715
38,490
204,500
89,171
103
682
290
795
21
347
1
-

1,401
27
10
103
404
6
393
11
305
-

3,314
38,463
204,490
89,171
278
284
402
10
42
1
-

4,224
38,010
205,496
79,040
148
626
300
730
14
410
-

Gross employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding governing body members
Executive governing body members
Total gross employee benefits

Other costs
Services from other CCGs and NHS England
Services from foundation trusts
Services from other NHS trusts
Services from other NHS bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies
Chair and Non Executive Members
Supplies and services – clinical
Supplies and services – general
Consultancy services
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Impairments and reversals of receivables
Inventories written down
Depreciation
Amortisation
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment
Impairments and reversals of intangible assets
Impairments and reversals of financial assets
·
Assets carried at amortised cost
·
Assets carried at cost
·
Available for sale financial assets
Impairments and reversals of non-current assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals of investment properties
Audit fees
Other non statutory audit expenditure
·
Internal audit services
·
Other services
General dental services and personal dental services
Prescribing costs
Pharmaceutical services
General ophthalmic services
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS
Other professional fees excl. audit
Grants to other public bodies
Clinical negligence
Research and development (excluding staff costs)
Education and training
Change in discount rate
Provisions
Funding to group bodies
CHC Risk Pool contributions
Other expenditure
Total other costs

68

68

-

90

44,815
23
4,934
5
8
551
(266)
1,051
357
390,661

8
8
148
204
3,096

44,815
23
4,934
(3)
403
(266)
1,051
153
387,565

44,056
13
3,973
47
8
575
43
501
435
378,739

Total operating expenses

397,968

6,681

391,287

384,903

Admin expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.
Included in gross employee benefits and other costs is expenditure in relation to the Clinical Commissioning Groups' collaborative arrangements,
described in detail in note 2.

6. Better Payment Practice Code
6.1 Measure of compliance
2015-16

2015-16

2014-15

2014-15

Number

£000

Number

£000

Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year

14,614

103,305

14,477

86,806

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target

14,474

102,798

14,292

86,030

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target

99.04%

99.51%

98.72%

99.11%

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year

2,580

248,861

2,389

254,701

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target

2,560

248,796

2,353

251,706

99.22%

99.97%

98.49%

98.82%

Non-NHS Payables

NHS Payables

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Clinical Commissioning Group to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30
days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.
Included in the note above are transactions in relation to the Clinical Commissioning Groups' collaborative arrangements, described in
detail in note 2.

6.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation

-

-

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation

-

-

Total

-

-

7. Income Generation Activities
The Clinical Commissioning Group does not undertake any income generation activities.

8. Operating Leases
8.1 As lessee
The Clinical Commissioning Group has operating leases in respect of photocopiers and leased cars for an agreed number of years, with no
renewal terms, purchase options or escalation clauses.

8.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense

Land
£000

Buildings
£000

Other
£000

2015-16
Total
£000

2014-15
Total
£000

Minimum lease payments

-

135

9

144

284

Contingent rents

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-lease payments

-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

135

9

144

284

Payments recognised as an expense

8.1.2 Future minimum lease payments
Land
£000

Buildings
£000

Other
£000

2015-16
Total
£000

2014-15
Total
£000

No later than one year

-

123

33

156

216

Between one and five years

-

164

22

186

465

After five years

-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

287

55

342

681

Payable

9. Investment property
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no investment property as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

10. Inventories
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no inventories as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

11. Trade and other receivables

NHS receivables: Revenue
NHS receivables: Capital

Current

Current

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

1,146

524

-

-

1,011

818

Non-NHS receivables: Revenue

2

4

Non-NHS receivables: Capital

-

-

Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income

246

425

Provision for the impairment of receivables

(1)

-

VAT

80

35

Private finance initiative and other public private partnership
arrangement prepayments and accrued income

-

-

Interest receivables

-

-

Finance lease receivables

-

-

NHS prepayments and accrued income

Operating lease receivables

-

-

Other receivables

2

13

2,486

1,819

Total Trade & other receivables
As at 31 March 2016 there were no non-current trade and other receivables (none at 31 March 2015).
There are no prepaid pensions contributions included above.

The great majority of trade is within the Department of Health Group. No credit scoring of them is considered necessary.
Included in the note above are balances in relation to the Clinical Commissioning Groups' collaborative arrangements, described in detail in
note 2.

11.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired
2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

By up to three months

5

-

By three to six months

-

-

By more than six months

1

1

Total

6

1

None of the 2015-16 amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.
The Clinical Commissioning Group did not hold any collateral against receivables outstanding at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

11.2 Provision for impairment of receivables
2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Balance at 1 April 2015

-

-

Amounts written off during the year

-

-

Amounts recovered during the year

-

-

(1)

-

-

-

(1)

-

(Increase) decrease in receivables impaired
Transfer (to) from other public sector body
Balance at 31 March 2016

The CCG has had an outstanding receivable for over two years. It is now considered prudent to provide against this potential loss.

12. Other financial assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no other financial assets as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

13. Other current assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no other current assets as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

14. Cash and cash equivalents
2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Balance at 1 April 2015

51

59

Net change in year

(26)

(8)

Balance at 31 March 2016

25

51

Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service

25

51

Cash with Commercial banks

-

-

Cash in hand

-

-

Current investments

-

-

25

51

Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service

-

-

Bank overdraft: Commercial banks

-

-

Total bank overdrafts

-

-

25

51

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position

Balance at 31 March 2016

15. Non-current assets held for sale
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no non-current assets held for sale as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

16. Analysis of impairments and reversals
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no impairments or reversals of impairments recognised in expenditure during 2015-16 (none during
2014-15).

17. Trade and other payables
Current

Current

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Interest payable

-

-

470

405

-

-

NHS accruals and deferred income

1,136

1,196

Non-NHS payables: revenue

2,228

1,034

-

-

11,067

13,431

64

51

NHS payables: revenue
NHS payables: capital

Non-NHS payables: capital
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income
Social security costs
VAT

-

-

Tax

62

53

Payments received on account

-

-

103

80

15,130

16,250

Other payables
Total Trade & Other Payables
As at 31 March 2016 there were no non-current trade and other payables (none at 31 March 2015).
Other payables include £95,030 outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: £76,765).

Included in the note above are balances in relation to the Clinical Commissioning Groups' collaborative arrangements, described in detail
in note 2.

18. Other financial liabilities
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no other financial liabilities as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

19. Other liabilities
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no other liabilities as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

20. Borrowings
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no borrowings as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

21. Private finance initiative, LIFT & other service concession arrangements
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no private finance initiative, LIFT or other service concession arrangements that were either excluded
from or included in the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

22. Finance lease obligations
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no finance lease obligations as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

23. Finance lease receivables

The Clinical Commissioning Group had no finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

24. Provisions
Current
2015-16

Noncurrent
2015-16

2014-15

Noncurrent
2014-15

£000

£000

£000

£000

Pensions relating to former directors

-

-

-

-

Pensions relating to other staff

-

-

-

-

Restructuring

-

-

-

-

Redundancy

-

-

-

-

Agenda for change

-

-

-

-

Equal pay

-

-

-

-

Legal claims

-

-

-

525

Continuing care

Current

163

292

355

Other

-

-

-

-

Total

163

292

355

525

Total current and non-current

455

880
Continuing Care
£000s

Balance at 1 April 2015
Arising during the year

880
270

Utilised during the year

(159)

Reversed unused

(536)

Unwinding of discount

-

Change in discount rate

-

Transfer (to) from other public sector body
Balance at 31 March 2016

455

Expected timing of cash flows:
Within one year

163

Between one and five years

292

After five years
Balance at 31 March 2016

455

The provision for continuing care relates to potential cost for continuing care reviews. There is uncertainty regarding the outcomes and
timings of individual case reviews.
Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, NHS England is responsible for accounting for liabilities
relating to NHS Continuing Healthcare claims relating to periods of care before establishment of the CCG. However, the legal liability
remains with the CCG. The total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare provisions accounted for by NHS England on behalf of this
CCG at 31 March 2016 is £1,786,694 (31 March 2015: £2,440,000).

25.

Commitments

25.1

Capital commitments

The Clinical Commissioning Group had no contracted capital commitments not otherwise included in these financial statements as at 31
March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

25.2

Other financial commitments

The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has entered into non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases, private finance initiative
contracts or other service concession arrangements) which expire as follows:

In not more than one year
In more than one year but not more than five years
In more than five years
Total

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

-

-

2,676

-

-

-

2,676

-

26.

Financial instruments

26.1

Financial risk management

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires
disclosure of the role that financial
instruments have had during the period in
creating or changing the risks a body faces in
undertaking its activities.
Because NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is
financed through parliamentary funding, it is
not exposed to the degree of financial risk
faced by business entities. Also, financial
instruments play a much more limited role in
creating or changing risk than would be
typical of listed companies, to which the
financial reporting standards mainly apply.
The clinical commissioning group has limited
powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and
financial assets and liabilities are generated by
day-to-day operational activities rather than
being held to change the risks facing the
clinical commissioning group in undertaking
its activities.
Treasury management operations are carried
out by the finance department, within
parameters defined formally within the NHS
Clinical Commissioning Group standing
financial instructions and policies agreed by
the Governing Body. Treasury activity is
subject to review by the Clinical
Commissioning Group's internal auditors.
26.1.1 Currency risk
The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is
principally a domestic organisation with the
great majority of transactions, assets and
liabilities being in the UK and sterling based.
The Clinical Commissioning Group has no

overseas operations. The Clinical
Commissioning Group and therefore has low
exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
26.1.2 Interest rate risk
The Clinical Commissioning Group borrows
from government for capital expenditure,
subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS
England. The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years,
in line with the life of the associated assets,
and interest is charged at the National Loans
Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The
clinical commissioning group therefore has
low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
26.1.3 Credit risk
Because the majority of the NHS Clinical
Commissioning Group and revenue comes
parliamentary funding, NHS Clinical
Commissioning Group has low exposure to
credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the
end of the financial year are in receivables
from customers, as disclosed in the trade and
other receivables note.
26.1.4 Liquidity risk
The Clinical Commissioning Group is required
to operate within revenue and capital
resource limits, which are financed from
resources voted annually by Parliament. The
Clinical Commissioning Group draws down
cash from NHS England to cover expenditure,
as the need arises. The Clinical Commissioning
Group is not, therefore, exposed to significant
liquidity risks.

26.2 Financial assets

Embedded derivatives
Receivables:
·
NHS
·
Non-NHS
Cash at bank and in hand
Other financial assets
Total at 31 March 2016

Embedded derivatives
Receivables:
·
NHS
·
Non-NHS
Cash at bank and in hand
Other financial assets
Total at 31 March 2015

At ‘fair value through
profit and loss’
2015-16
£000

Loans and Receivables
2015-16
£000

Available for Sale
2015-16
£000

Total
2015-16
£000

-

-

-

-

1,216
21
25
4
1,266

-

1,216
21
25
4
1,266

At ‘fair value through
profit and loss’
2014-15
£000

Loans and Receivables
2014-15
£000

Available for Sale
2014-15
£000

Total
2014-15
£000

-

-

-

-

524
4
51
13
592

-

524
4
51
13
592

At ‘fair value through
profit and loss’
2015-16
£000

Other
2015-16
£000

Total
2015-16
£000

26.3 Financial liabilities

Embedded derivatives
Payables:
·
NHS
·
Non-NHS
Private finance initiative, LIFT
and finance lease obligations
Other borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2016

-

-

-

1,606
13,398
-

-

15,004

At ‘fair value through
profit and loss’
2014-15
£000
Embedded derivatives
Payables:
·
NHS
·
Non-NHS
Private finance initiative, LIFT
and finance lease obligations
Other borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2015

Other
2014-15
£000

Total
2014-15
£000

-

-

-

1,601
14,545
-

-

16,146

27. Operating segments
The Clinical Commissioning Group considers that it has only one segment: commissioning of healthcare services.

28. Pooled budgets
The Clinical Commissioning Group has entered into pooled budget arrangements with Leeds City Council and the other two Leeds Clinical
Commissioning Groups (NHS Leeds North CCG and NHS Leeds West CCG). The Pools are hosted by either one of the CCGs or Leeds City Council.
Under the arrangement funds are pooled under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 for the Better Care Fund.
The contributions made by NHS Leeds South and East Clinical Commissioning Group in the financial year are as follows:
Pooled Budget Fund 1 CCG Hosted s75 Agreements

Income
Expenditure

2015-16
£000
4,125
(4,053)

2014-15
£000
-

2015-16
£000
1,396
(1,425)

2014-15
£000
-

Pooled Budget Fund 2 Leeds City Council Hosted s75 Agreements

Income
Expenditure

As part of the initial development of the Better Care Fund (BCF) in Leeds, a Partnership Agreement with Leeds City Council and the other two
Leeds CCGs has been put in place that describes the commissioning arrangements for a range of health and social care services.
The 4 funds are hosted by either Leeds City Council or one of the Leeds CCGs. The BCF Partnership Agreement is based on the national template
developed by NHS England and Bevan Brittan, and it includes Pooled funds (Section 75) and Non-pooled funds (Section 256/Section 76), which in
totality make up the Leeds Better Care Fund for 2015/16.
All funds are all overseen by a joint BCF Partnership Board. A summary is tabled below (this includes the Pooled Funds shown in the figures
above):
Contributions

Fund 1
Fund 2
Fund 3
Fund 4

CCG Hosted s75 Agreements
Council Hosted s75 Agreements
CCG Hosted Non-Pooled Funds
Council Hosted Non-Pooled Funds
Contingency

Total

Leeds
South &
East CCG
£000
4,125
1,396
5,392
5,887
551
17,351
17,351

Leeds West
CCG
£000
4,675
1,560
5,871
7,266
733
20,105

Leeds
North CCG
£000
2,766
2,766
922
922
3,522
3,522
4,822
4,822
633
633
12,665
12,665

Leeds City
Council
£000
3,144
3,1444,802
4,8027,946
7,946

Total
£000
11,566
11,566
7,022
7,022
14,785
14,785
22,777
22,777
1,917
1,917
58,067
58,067

Total
£000

Expenditure

Fund 1
Fund 2
Fund 3
Fund 4
Total

CCG Hosted s75 Agreements
Council Hosted s75 Agreements
CCG Hosted Non-Pooled Funds
Council Hosted Non-Pooled Funds
Contingency

Leeds
South &
East CCG
£000

Leeds West
CCG
£000

Leeds
North CCG
£000

Leeds City
Council
£000

4,053
1,425
5,435
5,887
551
17,351

4,600
1,594
5,912
7,266
733
20,105

2,720
941
3,549
4,822
633
12,665

3,144
4,802
7,946

11,373
11,373
7,104
7,104
14,896
14,896
22,777
22,777
1,917
1,917
58,067
58,067

29. NHS Lift investments
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no NHS LIFT investments as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

30. Intra-government and other balances
Current
Receivables
2015-16

Current
Payables
2015-16

£000

£000

Balances with:
·

Other Central Government bodies

·

Local Authorities

80

253

4

1,283

Balances with NHS bodies:
·

NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group

·

NHS bodies within the NHS England Group

·

NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts

Total of balances with NHS bodies:
·

Public corporations and trading funds

·

Bodies external to Government

Total balances at 31 March 2016

-

-

362

31

1,795

1,575

2,157

1,606

-

-

245

11,988

2,486

15,130

Current
Receivables
2014-15

Current
Payables
2014-15

£000

£000

35

180

2

501

Balances with:
·

Other Central Government bodies

·

Local Authorities

Balances with NHS bodies:
·

NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group

·

NHS bodies within the NHS England Group

·

NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts

Total of balances with NHS bodies:
·

Public corporations and trading funds

·

Bodies external to Government

Total balances at 31 March 2015
As at 31 March 2016 there were no non-current receivables and payables (none at 31 March 2015).

-

-

247

173

1,095

1,428

1,342

1,601

-

-

440

13,968

1,819

16,250

31. Related party transactions
None of the Department of Health Ministers, or parties related to any of them, have undertaken any material transactions with the Clinical
Commissioning Group during the year.
During the year the following Governing Body members, or parties related to any of them, were also members of medical practices with
which the Clinical Commissioning Group had material transactions concerning the provision of medical services and the purchase of
healthcare.
In addition, during the year members of the Governing Body held positions with organisations with which the Clinical Commissioning Group
had transactions, in relation to the purchase of healthcare, that require disclosure.
2015-16
Note

Medical Practices
Dr Andy Harris - Oulton Medical Centre
Dr Andy Harris - Dr Penn & Partners
Dr Alistair Walling - Ashfield Medical Centre
Dr Benjamin Browning - Lofthouse Surgery
Dr Dave Mitchell - Leeds City Medical Practice
Dr Jacqueline Campbell - Lingwell Croft Surgery
Dr Tom Gibbs - Dr Penn & Partners
Dr Helen Haywood - Dr Penn & Partners
Dr Arshad Rafique - The Whitfield Practice
Dr Amal Paul - Roundhay Road Surgery
Other Organisations
Leodis Care Ltd - related party with the following
individuals:
Dr
Andy Harris
Dr Alistair Walling
Dr Benjamin Browning
Dr Dave Mitchell
Dr Jacqueline Campbell
Dr Tom Gibbs
Gordon Tollefson
Dr Helen Haywood

3

1
3
2
2
2

of which
Amounts
owed to
Related Party

Payments to
Related Party

of which
Amounts
owed to
Related Party

£000

£000

£000

£000

345
364
295
272
368
364
364
169
58

55
95
20
33
88
95
95
48
17

175
227
106
161
196
235
227
-

64
86
29
44
65
58
86
-

723

-

715

3

1,223

-

-

-

1,144

3

1,129

-

3

1
3
2

South and East Leeds General Practice Group Ltd - related
party with the following individuals:
Dr Andy Harris
Dr Alistair Walling
Dr Benjamin Browning
Dr Dave Mitchell
Dr Tom Gibbs
Dr Arshad Rafique
Dr Amal Paul

2014-15

Payments to
Related Party

3

3

Brian Roebuck - Community Links (Northern) Ltd

Note
1. Resigned from the Governing Body with effect from 31st March 2015
2. Commenced Governing Body role on 1st January 2016
3. Resigned from the Governing Body with effect from 24th July 2015

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the Clinical Commissioning Group has had a significant number of
material transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. These entities are listed below:
• NHS England
• NHS Leeds West Clinical Commissioning Group
• NHS Leeds North Clinical Commissioning Group
• NHS Yorkshire & Humber Commissioning Support
• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust
• Leeds & York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
• Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust
• Yorkshire Ambulance Service NHS Trust
• Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust
• Harrogate and District NHS Foundation Trust
In addition, the Clinical Commissioning Group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central
and local government bodies. Most of these transactions have been with Leeds City Council.

32. Events after the end of the reporting period
There are no adjusting events after the reporting period which will have a material effect on the financial statements of the Clinical
Commissioning Group.
NHS England recently announced details of the Clinical Commissioning Groups approved to take on greater delegated responsibility or to
jointly commission GP services from 1st April 2016. The new primary care co-commissioning arrangements are part of a series of changes
set out in the NHS Five Year Forward View.
NHS Leeds South & East CCG has been approved under delegated commissioning arrangements which mean that the CCG will assume full
responsibility for contractual GP performance management, budget management and the design and implementation of local incentive
schemes from 1st April 2016.

33. Losses and special payments
33.1 Losses
The total number of NHS Clinical Commissioning Group losses and their total value, was as follows:

Total
Number of
Cases
2015-16

Total
Value of
Cases
2015-16

Total
Number of
Cases
2014-15

Total
Value of
Cases
2014-15

Number

£'000

Number

£'000

Administrative write-offs

1

1

-

-

Fruitless payments

-

-

-

-

Store losses

-

-

-

-

Book Keeping Losses

-

-

-

-

Constructive loss

-

-

-

-

Cash losses

-

-

-

-

Claims abandoned

-

-

-

-

Total

1

1

0

0

33.2 Special Payments
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no special payments cases during 2015-16 (none during 2014-15).

34. Third party assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group held no third party assets as at 31 March 2016 (none at 31 March 2015).

35. Financial performance targets
Clinical Commissioning Groups have a number of financial duties under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).
The Clinical Commissioning Group's performance against those duties was as follows:
2015-16

2015-16

2014-15

2014-15

Target

Performance

Target

Performance

£000

£000

£000

£000

407,407

397,967

395,772

384,903

Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in
Directions

-

-

-

-

Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified
in Directions

371,941

362,501

359,457

348,588

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed
the amount specified in Directions

-

-

-

-

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed
the amount specified in Directions

-

-

-

-

5,802

5,212

6,681

5,712

Expenditure not to exceed income

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the
amount specified in Directions

All financial duties applicable to the Clinical Commissioning Group were achieved in 2015-16.

36. Impact of IFRS
Accounting under IFRS had no impact on the results of the Clinical Commissioning Group during the 2015-16 financial year (none during
2014-15).

